Special Meeting of the
VALLECITO UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
Governing Board
AGENDA
Special Meeting agenda called by the Board President Pursuant to Government Code section 54956

Wednesday, February 23, 2022
5:00 p.m.

This meeting is being held only through remote teleconferencing in accordance with Government Code section
54953 and all other applicable provisions of the Brown Act. The links to access this virtual board meeting is
provided below:

5:00 p.m. - Public Session (time is approximate)

Video call link: https.://meet.google.com/str-suow-qnb
Or dial: (US) +1 515-207-6474 PIN: 448 403 295#

I SPECIAL MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
IL ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM

IIL. OPEN SESSION
Pledge of Allegiance

Government Code Section 54954.3 provides that the public will have an opportunity to address the Board on any item described
on a regular or special meeting either before or during the consideration of that item. The Board reserves the right to limit the
time of presentation by individual and cumulative (BB 9323)

IV. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

A. BUSINESS / FINANCE
A.l.  Review with Board’s consideration to approve the 2021 Audit - Pg. 1
Motion: Second: Roll Call Vote:

B. PERSONNEL
B.1 Board’s consideration to appoint Sarak Deplitch as Paraeducator — Special Ed at HFE effective
March 1, 2022
Motion: Second: Roll Call Vote:

V. BOARD MEMBER INTERVIEWS — Tom Hoskins, Secretary to the Governing Board, will facilitate the
Provisional Appointment process — Pg. 135
Governing Board’s consideration and possible appointment of an individual from a group of
individuals who submitted applications for the Provisional Appointment to the Governing Board pursuant to
Education Code section 5091. The person selected as the Provisional Appointee shall serve until the first Friday in
December of 2022, unless a Special Election is called for pursuant to Education Code section 5091, subdivision
(c)(1), following notice to the public of the Provisional Appointment

Motion: Second: Roll Call Vote:




VL ADJOURNMENT

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, for those requiring special assistance to access the Board meeting
room, to access written documents being discussed at the Board meeting, or to otherwise participate at Board meetings,
please contact the Board Secretary Cheryl Boyd at 209-795-8503 for assistance. Notification at least 48 hours before the
meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Board meeting and to
provide any required accommodations, auxiliary aids or services.

Documents provided to a majority of the Governing Board regarding an open session item on this agenda will be made
available for public inspection in the District Office located at 4545 B Moran Road, Avery, CA during normal business
hours. In addition, such writings and documents may be posted on the district’s website at: www.vallecitokl2.com




PPN

EideBailly.
—

(PAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

February 17, 2022

To the Governing Board
Vallecito Union School District
San Jose, California

We have audited the financial statements of Vallecito Union School District (the District) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated February 17, 2022. Professional standards
require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards
and Government Auditing Standards and our Compliance Audit under the Uniform Guidance

As communicated in our engagement letter dated May 18, 2021, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared
by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and to express an opinion on whether the District
complied with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the District’s major federal programs. Our audit of the financial
statements does not relieve you or management of its respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly,
as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the District solely for the purpose of determining our
audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards as it relates to the audit of the District’s major federal
program compliance, is to express an opinion on the compliance for each of the District’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. An audit of major
program compliance includes consideration of internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, as a part of our major program compliance audit, we considered internal control over
compliance for these purposes and not to provide any assurance on the effectiveness of the District's internal
control over compliance

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not
required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you.

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebuailly.com 1
4040 Compbell Ave,, Sto. 200 | Manlo Park, CA 94025-1053 | T650.522.3400 | F 650.645.7393 | EOE



We have provided our comments regarding internal controls during our audit in our Independent Auditor’s
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards dated February 17, 2022.
We have also provided our comments regarding compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above and internal controls over compliance during our audit in our Independent Auditor’s Report on

Compliance with Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the
Uniform Guidance dated February 17, 2022.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you.
Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and other firms utilized in the engagement,
if applicable, have complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices

Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the District is included in Note 1 to the financial statements. The
District implemented the requirements of GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. As a result of adopting
GASB 84, the District reclassified the presentation of its Associated Student Body (ASB) agency fund from
Fiduciary Fund type to Special Revenue Fund type. Other than mentioned, no other matters have come to our
attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to
account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial
or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based
on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about
past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly
sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future
events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements were:

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires the District to calculate, recognize, and report the
costs and obligations associated with pensions in their financial statements. These amounts were all determined
based on the District’s proportionate share of the California State Teachers’ Retirement System {CalSTRS) and
the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) estimated net pension liability, deferred outflows
of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and pension expense, which utilized projections of future
contributions and future earnings, actuarial assumptions such as inflation, salary increases, mortality rates, and
investment rate of return and discount rates in the determination of the final balances reported in the CalSTRS
and CalPERS audited financial statements. The District’s proportionate share was determined by calculating the



District’s share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating entities in
the plan.

Management’s estimate of the Total OPEB liability, related deferred outflows of resources, and OPEB expense
are based on a calculation of actuarially determined contributions for health insurance benefits.

Financial Statement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of
their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the District’s financial

statements relate to Total Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Liability and CalPERS and CalSTRS Employee
Retirement Systems.

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the audit.

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them
to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the
effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account
balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole. There is no such misstatement in the current

year.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter,
which could be significant to the District’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. No such disagreements
arose during the course of the audit.

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated February 17, 2022.

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other

accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.

Modification of the Auditor’s Report

We have made the following modification to our auditor’s report.



Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Notes 1 and Notes 13 to the financial statements, the District has adopted the provisions of
GASB Statement No. 84, | Fiduciary Activities, which has resulted in a restatement of the net position (deficit)
and fund balance as of July 1, 2020. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues

In the normal course of our professional association with the District, we generally discuss a variety of matters,
including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, business conditions affecting the
entity, and business plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters
discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the District’s auditors.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Governing Board and management of the
District and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

szo,&z/guf

Menlo Park, California



%}b Annual Financial Report
June 30, 2021

Vallecito Union School District

/®>>¢%
EideBailly.
eidebailly.com \.-==,=/




This page intentional left blank.




Vallecito Union School District
Table of Contents

June 30, 2021
INdependent AUAItOr'S REPOITL.........cccciriereiereientesreestreereseisessessesissesssesesissessesesessssssessssessassssssssesssessessasessessassssans 1
Management’s DISCUSSION N0 ANGIYSIS ...........ccvvreereeertenieeerererereeeesrestssseosteesseessossesssesssssessensestossssersossessssssssensans 4
Government Wide Financial Statements
StAteMENt OFf NET POSIHION ....ccoiieiiirriertrirtene e e sse s saebsseesebesnesesbessassbsssasassasssessasossssstons stessosessssenies 13
SEAtEMENT OF ACHIVILIES. ..ottt cateeree v ser et eesesre st st esbssssastssssassesssarestassisnesssevatesasontane 14
Government Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet — GOVErNMENTAl FUNGS ..........ooeeceeirieieenineet ettt ereesrsbeseessstesssssessasssbeseessessensossennans 15
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net POSition........cccvevvvervevennee 16
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds ..........ccceeveuvennae 17
NOLES t0 FINANCIA] STALEMENES c.eueveeeereieeeerteiet e rrrerasterr et e sresnsresssbesbessesasansssassarsrsontenssssnsesseasssssoreneen 20
Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule ~ GENEral FUNG ......c.cciiieivevereeeceeereeerreerrerrereeesserersessserssssessossosnsersesssersesssos 51
Schedule of Changes in the District’s Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios ..........ccvveviinieiierisnsiesneneessorenes 52
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability..........cccooeveeemeverreeerinceecreeeeeneenns 53
Schedule of the District’s Pension CONIIBULIONS .....cceeveruerreueivitieieeircsrieseseercsresesseseesesssestesessessssssssssssssseesees 54
Note to Required Supplementary INFOrMatioN.........ccveeeeeeeeiiiciciee ettt sesressss s e sssasesassessessasennes 55
Local Education AGency Organization SITUCKUE.........ccevrerireiiveiresentsnrereesessesesssssessessssesessssesisssesessessesessssesas 57
Local Education AGency Organization StIUCIUIE.........ccceeeviviieeie sttt ste s steesese et st et st e ss s besssseesenan 58
SChedule Of INSTFUCHIONAI TIMIE «....eeeeeieeeeee et es s eaeesve s et eesessote et sestssastasstsssseensassesastassasessanseseenaesaseeses 59
Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements .......ccoeceeeeereerenneene 60
Schedule of FINancial Trends and ANIYSIS .........cocceerrerriinieniirie et ceereeesresesreseseesassesssssesessesssresssssessessessssssenses 61
Combining Balance Sheet — Non-Major Governmental FUNGS ............ccveiieieniniienenensnrensiesennsssssssessssressene 62
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditure, and Changes in Fund Balances — Non-Major Governmental
FUNGTS . coteereterernresiereecressestestriaeessssessesaesasssesessensesessessensesseseresssessesssnsestosenssssonsossssessssossesessssonsesnasessasssosorsensonts 63
Note to SUPPIEMENTArY INFOIMEALION .......vcveirrereeccirerreeee et reresrsabesssae st sasssesnsensennensensenens 64

Independent Auditor’s Reports

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing

SEANAGIAS ....ceoneririiiiriiisiiieit st testreee e test s ssaseatasesssesessssesstasss etessensasssssasessensentensonsentasensonsessssesensssesnsensensensonsenes 66
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance

Required by the Uniform GUILANCE .........ccoeieiiiicieccrieerneeetsieniessesienseseeseesersetsesssaeseesessesenssssessensessssensenssessesassenes 68
Independent Auditor's Report 0N State COMPIIANCE.......ccviriirriecicreerieeeeceerrerrereresreressaossrssestsosssssossssenssssessaornss 70

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

SUMMATY OF AUAILOT'S RESUILS.......oveirtrerertiertrenereeseenestsereses s ssesebebessebebessbessesesbessssssebassosessesersetesssssssessasenresenee 73
FINGNCial STatemMENt FINGINGS .o.coveereeeeieeeeeceet et estsee et eee e eesr e e re e s sae s se e sasere st ennsasssasesbessasasssessensensasnass 74
State Awards Findings and Questioned Costs
Summary Schedule of Prior AUt FINAINGS.....c.ccoviiiiiinceiceninesentneesessieresesseresessessessessesssestessesesssssssssessens 76



This page-ntenitional left-olank.




B>
x

EideBailly.
\Ne—

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report

Governing Board
Vallecito Union School District
Avery, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Vallecito Union School District {the District) as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal contro! relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebuilly.com

4040 Compball Ave., Ste. 200 | Menlo Pork, CA 940251053 | T 650.522.3400 | F 650.645.7393 | EOE



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Vallecito Union School District, as of June 30, 2021, and the respective
changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter — Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Notes 1 and 13 to the financial statements, Vallecito Union School District has adopted
the provisions of GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, which has resulted in a restatement of the
net position and fund balance as of july 1, 2020. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this
matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of changes in the District’s total
OPEB liability and related ratios, schedule of the District’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability,
schedule of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, and the schedule of District
contributions, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Vallecito Union School District’s financial statements. The combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements, Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards as required by the
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and
other supplementary information listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.

10



The combining non-major governmental fund financial statements, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards, and the other supplementary information listed in the table of contents are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining non-major governmental fund financial
statements, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and the other supplementary information
listed in the table of contents are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated on our
consideration of Vallecito Union School District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of Vallecito Union School District’s internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Vallecito Union School District’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

@//&%AAW

Menlo Park, California
February 17, 2022

11



This page intgntijo"narljeft blaﬁk.

12



Vallecito Union School District

t’s Di i nalysis
T Management’s Discussion and Analy:
SCHOOL DISTRICGT June 30, 2021

The discussion and analysis of Vallecito Union School District's (District) financial performance provides an
overall review of the District's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, with comparative
information for the year ended June 30, 2020. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the District's
financial performance as a whole. To provide a complete understanding of the District's financial performance,
please read it in conjunction with the Independent Auditor's Report, the District's financial statements, and
notes to the basic financial statements.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the reporting model adopted by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in their Statement No. 34 Basic Financial Statements — and
Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments issued June 1999,

Financial Highlights

e General Fund revenue and other sources exceeded expenditures and other uses by $569,317 ending the
year with available reserves of $2,855,495, meeting the State recommended reserve level of four percent.

e The total of the District's capital assets, land, site, buildings and equipment, valued on an acquisition cost
basis was $28.8 million. After depreciation, the June 30, 2021 book value for capital assets totaled
$16,485,536.

e In complying with GASB 68, the District recognized its portion of the unfunded CalSTRS and CalPERS
pension liabilities for the first time in 2014-2015. These liabilities are based on the most recent actuarial
valuations. Recognizing the liabilities decreased the June 30, 2014 total net position on the Statement of
Net Position by $5,097,663. Since GASB 68, the District's portion of the unfunded CalSTRS and CalPERS
pension liability increased annually to $8,573,746 in 2020-2021 and is reported in the Statement of Net
Position.

¢ In complying with GASB 75, the District recognized additional OPEB liability in the amount of $801,438 in
2017-2018. The implementation decreased its beginning net position on the Statement of Net Position in
2017-2018. In fiscal year 2020-2021, the District’s portion of the unfunded OPEB liability is $526,088.

Overview of the Financial Statements
This annual report consists of three parts — management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic
financial statements, and required supplementary information. These statements are organized so the reader

can understand the Vallecito Union School District as a financial whole, an entire operating entity. The
statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at specific financial activities.

13



Vallecito Union School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2021

Components of the Financial Section

Management’s Basic Required
Discussion Financial Supplementary
and Analysis ~ Statements Information
Government-wide ~ Fund Notes to the
Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements
Summary B s Detail

O

The first two statements are district-wide financial statements, the Statement of Net Position and Statement of
Activities. These statements provide information about the activities of the whole District, presenting both an
aggregate view of the District's finances and a longer-term view of those finances. Fund financial statements
provide the next level of detail. For governmental funds, these statements tell how services were financed in the
short-term as well as what remains for future spending. The fund financial statements also look at the District's
more significant funds with all other non-major funds presented in total in one column. A comparison of the
District's general fund budget is included.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and provide
more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information that
further explains and supports the financial statements.

Reporting the School District as a Whole
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information about the District as a whole
and about its activities. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and
deferred inflows of resources of the District using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the

accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken
into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements provide information about the District as a whole using accounting methods similar to
those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the District's assets and
liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting. This basis of accounting takes into account all of the current
year's revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid. These statements report information

on the district as a whole and its activities in a way that helps answer the question, “How did we do financially
during 2020-20217?"

14



Vallecito Union School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2021

These two statements report the District's net position and changes in that position. This change in net position
is important because it tells the reader that, for the District as a whole, the financial position of the District has
improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result of many factors, some financial, some not.
Over time, the increases or decreases in the District's net position, as reported in the Statement of Activities, are
one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. The relationship between revenues
and expenses indicates the District's operating results. However, the District's goal is to provide services to our
students, not to generate profits as commercial entities. One must consider many other non-financial factors,

such as the quality of education provided and the safety of the schools to assess the overall health of the
District.

e Increases or decreases in the net position of the District over time are indications of whether its financial
position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

» Additional non-financial factors such as condition of school buildings and other facilities, and changes to
the property tax base of the District need to be considered in assessing the overall health of the District.

Reporting the District's Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's most significant funds —
not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep track of specific sources of
funding and spending on particular programs. Some funds are required to be established by State law. However,
the District establishes other funds to control and manage money for specific purposes.

e Governmental Funds

Most of the District's activities are reported in governmental funds. The major governmental funds of the
District are the General Fund, the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund and the Capital Facilities Fund.
Governmental funds focus on how money flows into and out of the funds and the balances that remain at
the end of the year. They are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting,
which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental
fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District's operations and services that help
determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to
finance the District's programs.

15



Vallecito Union School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2021

Financial Analysis of the Government-Wide Statements

The School District as a Whole

The District's net position had a deficit of $0.89 million on June 30, 2021. Net investment in capital assets,
amount to positive $1.05 million of the total net position. A comparative analysis of government-wide data is
presented in Table 1.

(Table 1)
Comparative Statement of Net Position
Governmental
Activities Changes
2021 2020 2021-2020
Restated
Assets
Current and other assets S 7,699,002 $ 13,868,321 -44.5%
Capital assets 16,485,536 8,320,629 98.1%
Total assets 24,184,538 22,188,950 9.0%
Deferred outflows
of resources 2,261,550 2,401,397 -5.8%
Liabilities
Current liabilities 950,407 1,557,744 -39.0%
Long-term liabilities 25,466,662 23,201,340 9.8%
Total liabilities 26,417,069 24,759,084 6.7%
Deferred inflows
of resources 919,364 989,996 -7.1%
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 1,047,413 975,072 7.4%
Restricted 1,520,840 1,518,641 0.1%
Unrestricted (3,458,598} (3,641,446) -5.0%
Total net position (deficit) $  (890,345) S (1,147,733} -22.4%

The implementation of GASB 68 and 75 in fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2018, respectively, resulted ina
deficit net position. Total pension and OPEB liability and related deferred outflows and inflows amounted to
$7.8 million as of June 30, 2021,

16



Vallecito Union School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2021

The District's net position decreased $257,388 this fiscal year (see Table 1). The District's expenses for
instructional and pupil services represented 75% of total expenses. The purely administrative activities of the
District accounted for just 9% of total costs. The remaining 16% was spent in the areas of plant services, interest
on long-term debt, depreciation and other outgo. (See Figure 2).

(Table 2)

Comparative Statement of Change in Net Position

Governmental
Activities Changes
2021 2020* 2021-2020
Revenues

Program revenues
Charges for services S 238,639 S 143,628 66.2%
Operating grants and contributions 1,594,438 833,961 91.2%

General revenues
Federal and State aid not restricted 781,578 768,443 1.7%
Property taxes 8,184,666 7,591,099 7.8%
Other general revenues 357,868 992,684 -63.9%
Total revenues 11,157,189 10,329,815 8.0%

Expenses

Instruction-related 6,914,267 6,200,437 11.5%
Pupil services 1,274,910 1,214,323 5.0%
Administration 994,440 953,117 4.3%
Plant services 1,028,463 949,580 8.3%
All other services 687,721 557,493 23.4%
Total expenses 10,899,801 9,874,950 10.4%
Change in net position S 257,388 S 454,865 -43.4%

* The revenues and expenses for fiscal year 2020 were not restated to show the effects of GASB 84 for comparative

purposes.

As reported in the Statement of Activities, the cost of all of the District's governmental activities this year was
$10.9 million. The amount that our local taxpayers financed for these activities through property taxes was $8.2
million. Federal and State aid not restricted to specific purposes totaled $0.8 million. Program revenues totaled
over $1.8 million and covered 16% of the expenses of the entire District (see Figure 1). Add wording to discuss
the economic factors that significantly affected operating results for revenues, expenses and changes from the

prior year.



Vallecito Union School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2021

(Figure 1)
Sources of Revenue for the 2020-2021 Fiscal Year

Grants and Contributions
14%

Charges for Services

2% R
Other General/

4%

Federal and State Aid
7%
i

Property Taxes—
73%

(Figure 2)

Expenses for the 2020-2021 Fiscal Year

Other
Plant services 7.0%
9.0%

Administration.__
9.0% :

Pupil services ___
12.0%

Instruction-related
63.0%

Financial Analysis of the Fund Statements

The fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the District's operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements. The District's individual fund statements provide information on inflows and
outflows and balances of spendable resources. The District's Governmental Funds reported a combined fund
balance of $7.70 million, a decrease of $5.22 million from the previous fiscal year's combined ending balance.

18



Vallecito Union School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2021

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the District revises the annual operating budget monthly. The significant budget
adjustments fell into the following categories:

* Budget revisions to the adopted budget required after approval of the State budget.

* Budget revisions to update revenues to actual enrollment information and to update expenditures for
staffing adjustments related to actual enrollments.

» Other budget revisions are routine in nature, including adjustments to categorical revenues and
expenditures based on final awards, and adjustments between expenditure categories for school and
department budgets.

The District ended the year with an increase of $536 thousand to the General Fund ending balance. The State
recommends an ending reserve for economic uncertainties of 4%. The District's ending available reserve was
33.7%, which included the reserve for economic uncertainties.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2021, the District had $16.5 million in a broad range of capital assets (net of depreciation), including
land, buildings, furniture, and equipment. This amount represents a net increase {including additions,
deductions, and depreciation) of $8.2 million, or 98.1%, from last year (See Table 3).

(Table 3)
Comparative Schedule of Capital Assets
{net of depreciation)

Governmental
Activities Changes
2021 2020 2021-2020
Land and construction in progress S 2,008,078 S 4,192,747 S (2,184,669)
Land improvements - 42,181 (42,181)
Buildings and improvements 14,448,481 4,055,583 10,392,898
Equipment 28,977 30,118 {1,141)
Total $ 16,485,536 $ 8,320,629 S 8,164,907

This year’s additions of $8.2 million included school modernization and improvements. We present more
detailed information about our capital assets in Note 5 to the financial statements.

10

19



Vallecito Union School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2021

Long-Term Liabilities

At the end of this year, the District had $25.5 million in long-term debt outstanding versus $23.2 million last
year, an increase of 9.76%. Those long-term debts consisted of:

(Table 4)
Comparative Schedule of Outstanding Debt
Governmental
Activities Changes
2021 2020 2021-2020
General obligation bonds $ 13,993,797 $ 11,902,403 $ 2,091,394
Unamortized premium 477,148 - 477,148
General obligation bond accretion 1,850,863 2,642,257 (791,394)
Compensated absences 45,020 33,993 11,027
OPEB liability 526,088 824,044 (297,956)
Net pension liability 8,573,746 7,798,643 775,103
Total $ 25,466,662 $ 23,201,340 $ 2,265,322

The general obligation bonds paid by the District was $1.5 million in 2020-2021.

Factors Bearing on the District's Future

The Local Control Funding Formula {LCFF) is aimed at correcting historical inequities while decreasing previous
constraints on restricted program expenses. The formula is intended to make funding more transparent and
simple. With the new flexibility also come new requirements for accountability. The Local Control Accountability
Plan (LCAP) is mandated and must be aligned and adopted with the District's 2020-2021 budget. The LCAP is
expected to describe how the District intends to meet annual goals for all pupils, with specific activities to
address state and local priorities identified during the LCAP development process.

The new funding structure has no statutory cost of living allowance built into it and relies solely on the annual
budget process at the legislative level.

However, even within the new funding formula, the District remains a community funded or “basic aid” district.
The bulk of District funding comes from local property tax revenues and those revenues exceed the targeted
funding level of the LCFF. In addition, the “fair share” reduction is held over from the previous revenue limit
formula as cuts in state aid for Community Funded districts have not been restored.

As the state closes the gap between current funding levels and the target, the amount allocated to
supplemental/concentration grants and the tax-in-lieu transfer to charter schools will increase with no
guarantee of added income to offset those increases.

11

20



Vallecito Union School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2021

Planning for the “out years” will be much more difficult and volatile under the LCFF funding formula, thereby
creating a need for a larger reserve than past years.

Future predictions and uncertainties with the changes to the State funding formula, enroliment and aging
District facilities require management to plan carefully and prudently to provide the necessary resources to
meet student’s needs and continue to keep pace with inflation increases over the next several years.

Contacting the District's Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, students, and investors and creditors with a
general overview of the District's finances and to show the District's accountability for the money it receives. If

you have questions about this report or need any additional financial information, contact Gretchen
McReynolds, Business Manager, P.0. Box 329, Avery, California, 95224 or call at (209) 795-8502.

12

21



Vallecito Union School District
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2021
Governmental
Activities
Assets
Deposits and investments S 7,349,517
Receivables 349,485
Capital assets not depreciated 2,008,078
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 14,477,458
Total assets 24,184,538
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 101,772
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 2,159,778
Total deferred outflows of resources 2,261,550
Liabilities
Accounts payable 178,816
Interest payable 605,807
Unearned revenue 165,784
Long-term liabilities other than OPEB and pensions
Due within one year 1,282,513
Due in more than one year 15,084,315
Total other postemployment benfits liabilities (OPEB) 526,088
Aggregate net pension liabilities 8,573,746
Total liabilities 26,417,069
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 460,859
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 458,505
Total deferred inflows of resources 919,364
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 1,047,413
Restricted for
Debt service 1,091,863
Capital projects 239,478
Educational programs -
Food service 47,235
Student activities 142,264
Unrestricted (3,458,598)
Total net position S (890,345)

See Notes to Financial Statements

13



Vallecito Union School District
Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2021
Net (Expenses)
Program Revenues Revenues
Charges for Operating
Services and Grantsand  Governmental
Functions/Programs Expenses Sales Contributions Activities
Governmental Activities
instruction $ 5,662,122 § 54,654 S 917,380 $ (4,690,088)
Instruction-related activities
Supervision of instruction 75,648 - 58,412 (17,236)
Instructional library, media,
and technology 144,817 - 7,718 (137,099)
School site administration 1,031,680 - 37,629 {994,051)
Pupil services
Home-to-school transportation 361,502 - - (361,502)
Food services 317,893 37,944 179,602 (100,347)
All other pupil services 595,515 - 311,744 (283,771)
Administration
Data processing 40,922 - - (40,922)
All other administration 953,518 105 1,063 {952,350)
Plant services 1,028,463 145,936 78,288 (804,239)
Ancillary services 88,350 - 29 (88,321)
Interest on long-term liabilities 391,395 - - (391,395)
Other outgo 207,976 - 2,573 {205,403)

Total governmental activities

General Revenues and Subventions

$ 10,899,801

238,639 S 1,594,438 (9,066,724)

Property taxes, levied for general purposes

Property taxes, levied for debt service

Federal and State aid not restricted to specific purposes

Interest and investment earnings

Miscellaneous

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position (deficit) - Beginning, as restated

Net Position {Deficit) - Ending

See Notes to Financial Statements

6,972,262
1,212,404

781,578
1,028,740

(670,872)

9,324,112

257,388
(1,147,733)
S (890,345)

14

23



Vallecito Union School District
Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds

June 30, 2021
8ond
Interest and Non-Major Total
General Building Redemption Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Assets
Deposits and investments S 4,198,444 $ 883,685 $ 1,697,670 S 569,718 S 7,349,517
Receivables 335,409 - - 14,076 349,485
Total assets $ 4533853 S 883685 $ 1,697,670 S§ 583,794 § 7,699,002
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable S 169,452 S - S - S 9,364 $ 178,816
Total liabilities 335,236 - - 9,364 344,600
Fund Balances
Nonspendable 3,000 - - - 3,000
Restricted 308,422 883,685 1,697,670 367,314 3,257,091
Assigned 1,031,700 - - 207,116 1,238,816
Unassigned 2,855,495 - - - 2,855,495
Total fund balances 4,198,617 883,685 1,697,670 574,430 7,354,402
Total liabilities and fund $ 4,533,853 $ 883,685 S 1,697,670 S 583,794 S 7,699,002

See Notes to Financial Statements

15

24



Vallecito Union School District
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2021

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the
Statement of Net Position are Different Because

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as assets in
governmental funds.,

The cost of capital assets is

Accumulated depreciation is

Net capital assets

In governmental funds, unmatured interest on long-term
liabilities is recognized in the period when it is due. On the
government-wide financial statements, unmatured interest on
long-term liabilities is recognized when it is incurred.

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net
position in a future period and is not reported in the governmental
funds. Deferred outflows of resources amounted to and related to
Other postemployment benefits (OPEB)
Net pension liability

Total deferred outflows of resources

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position
that applies to a future period and is not reported in the governmental
funds. Deferred inflows of resources amount to and related to

Other postemployment benefits (OPEB)

Net pension liability

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net pension liability is not due and payable in the current period,
and is not reported as a liability in the funds.

The District’s OPEB liability is not due and payable in the current period,
and is not reported as a liability in the funds.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the funds.
Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of
General obligation bonds
Unamortized premiums
Compensated absences (vacations)
In addition, capital appreciation general obligation bonds were
issued. The accretion of interest to date on the general
obligation bonds is

Total long-term liabilities

Total net position - governmental activities

See Notes to Financial Statements

$ 28,846,848

(12,361,312)

101,772

2,159,778

(460,859)

(458,505)

(13,993,797)
(477,148)
(45,020)

(1,850,863)

$ 7,354,402

16,485,536

(605,807)

2,261,550

(919,364)

(8,573,746)

(526,088)

(16,366,828)

$  (890,345)

16

25



Vallecito Union School District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2021
Bond
Interestand  Non-Major Total
General Building Redemption Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues
Local control funding formula $7,631,775 S - S - S - $§ 7,631,775
Federal sources 836,541 - - 153,523 990,064
Other State sources 665,958 - - 10,877 676,835
Other local sources 28,460 {120,970) 1,209,976 491,761 1,609,227
Total revenues 9,162,734 (120,970) 1,209,976 656,161 10,907,901
Expenditures
Current
Instruction 4,793,703 - - - 4,793,703
Instruction-related activities
Supervision of instruction 63,778 - - - 63,778
Instructional library, media,
and technology 125,474 - - - 125,474
School site administration 866,769 - - - 866,769
Pupil services
Home-to-school transportat 296,657 - - - 296,657
Food services - - - 282,278 282,278
All other pupil services 549,634 - - - 549,634
Administration
Data processing 15,176 - - - 15,176
All other administration 858,117 - - - 858,117
Plant services 846,447 - - 68,343 914,790
Ancillary services 1,126 - - 87,070 88,196
Other outgo 61,536 - - - 61,536
Capital outlays - 8,938,448 - 1,080 8,939,528
Debt service
Principal - - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
Interest and other - 56,000 3,224 - 59,224
Total expenditures 8,478,417 8,994,448 1,503,224 438,771 19,414,860
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 684,317 (9,115,418) (293,248) 217,390 (8,506,959)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in - - - 115,000 115,000
Bond proceeds - 2,800,000 486,986 - 3,286,986
Transfers out (115,000) - - - {115,000)
Net Financing Sources (Uses) (115,000) 2,800,000 486,986 115,000 3,286,986
Net Change in Fund Balances 569,317 (6,315,418) 193,738 332,390 (5,219,973)
Fund Balance - Beginning, as restated 3,629,300 7,199,103 1,503,932 242,040 12,574,375
Fund Balance - Ending $4,198617 $ 883,685 $1,697,670 S 574,430 S 7,354,402

See Notes to Financial Statements

17



Vallecito Union School District

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental

Funds to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of
Activities are Different Because

Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in
governmental funds as expenditures; however, for governmental
activities, those costs are shown in the Statement of Net Position and
allocated over their estimated useful lives as annual depreciation
expenses in the Statement of Activities.

This is the amount by which depreciation exceeds capital outlays in
the period.

Depreciation expense

Capital outlays

Net expense adjustment

In the Statement of Activities, certain operating expenses, such as
compensated absences (vacations) are measured by the amounts
earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however,
expenditures for these items are measured by the amount of
financial resources used (essentially, the amounts actually paid).
This amount is the difference between vacation earned and used.

In the governmental funds, pension costs are based on employer
contributions made to pension plans during the year. However,

in the Statement of Activities, pension expense is the net effect of
all changes in the deferred outflows, deferred inflows and net
pension liability during the year.

In the governmental funds, OPEB costs are based on employer
contributions made to OPEB plans during the year. However, in the
Statement of Activities, OPEB expense is the net effect of all changes
in the deferred outflows, deferred inflows, and net OPEB liability
during the year.

Proceeds received from Certificates of Participation or Sale of Bonds
is a revenue in the governmental funds, but it increases long-term
liabilities in the Statement of Net Position and does not affect the
Statement of Activities.

Governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, and
the deferred amount on a refunding when the debt is first issued,
whereas the amounts are deferred and amortized in the
Statement of Activities.

Premium on issuance recognized

Premium amortization

See Notes to Financial Statements

$  (5,219,973)

$  (773,541)
8,938,448

8,164,907

(11,027)

(599,040)

41,678

(2,800,000)

(486,986)
9,838

18

27



Vallecito Union School District

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental
Funds to the Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2021
Payment of principal on long-term liabilities is an expenditure in
the governmental funds, but it reduces long-term liabilities in the
Statement of Net Position and does not affect the Statement
of Activities.
General obligation bonds 708,606
General obligation bonds accreted interest 791,394
Interest on long-term liabilities is recorded as an expenditure in the
funds when it is due; however, in the Statement of Activities, interest
expense is recognized as the interest accretes or accrues, regardless of
when it is due. (342,009)
Change in net position of governmental activities S 257,388
See Notes to Financial Statements 19

28



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Note1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Financial Reporting Entity

The Vallecito Union School District (District) was organized/unified under the laws of the State of California. The
District operates under a locally elected 5 member Board form of government and provides educational services
to grades kindergarten - eighth as mandated by the State and/or Federal agencies. The District operates 2
elementary and 1 middle school.

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units and other organizations that are
included to ensure the financial statements are not misleading. The primary government of the District consists
of all funds, departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from the District. For Vallecito Union
School District, this includes general operations, food service and student related activities of the District.

Component Units

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially accountable. Component
units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the District, in that the District approves their
budget, the issuance of their debt or the levying of their taxes. in addition, component units are other legally
separate organizations for which the District is not financially accountable but the nature and significance of the
organization’s relationship with the District is such that exclusion would cause the District’s financial statements
to be misleading or incomplete. For financial reporting purposes, the component unit described below has a
financial and operational relationship which meets the reporting entity definition criteria of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement no. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB
Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units, and GASB Statement No.
80, Blending Requirements For Certain Component Units and thus are included in the financial statements of the
District. The component unit, although a legally separate entity, is reported in the financial statements using the
blended presentation method as if it was part of the District’s operations.

The Calaveras County School Financing Authority (Authority) was formed under the "Joint Powers Law" pursuant
to a Joint Powers Agreement, dated January 1, 1994, for purposes of assisting its members in financing capital
improvements. The original members of the Authority were Calaveras Unified School District and the Calaveras

County Office of Education. The District was accepted and became a member of the Authority on March 16,
1995.

The Authority has a financial and operational relationship with the District. The financial activities of the
Authority, which specifically relate to the Bret Harte Union High School District, have been included in the
financial statements of the District as the Debt Service Fund for Blended Component Units.

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting
The accounting system is organized and operated on a fund basis. A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting
entity with a self-balancing set of accounts, which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific

activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations. The
District has only governmental funds.

20

29



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Governmental Funds Governmental Funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are
financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses, and balances of current financial
resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes for
which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The
difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance. The following are the
District's major and non-major governmental funds:

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund The General Fund is the chief operating fund for all districts. It is used to account for the ordinary

operations of the District. All transactions except those accounted for in another fund are accounted for in this
fund.

Three funds currently defined as special revenue funds in the California State Accounting Manual (CSAM) do not
meet the GASB Statement No. 54 special revenue fund definition. Specifically, Fund 14, Deferred Maintenance,
Fund 17, Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects, and Fund 20, Special Reserve Fund for
Postemployment Benefits, are not substantially composed of restricted or committed revenue sources. While
these funds are authorized by statute and will remain open for internal reporting purposes, these funds function
effectively as extensions of the General Fund, and accordingly have been combined with the General Fund for
presentation in these audited financial statements.

As a result, the General Fund reflects an increase in fund balance of $979,990.

Building Fund The Building Fund exists primarily to account separately for proceeds from the sale of bonds

(Education Code Section 15146) and may not be used for any purposes other than those for which the bonds
were issued.

Debt Service Funds The Debt Service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the
payment of principal and interest on general long-term liabilities.

¢ Bond Interest and Redemption Fund The Bond Interest and Redemption Fund is used for the repayment of
bonds issued for a District (Education Code Sections 15125-15262).

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds The Special Revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds from specific revenue
sources (other than trusts, major capital projects, or debt service) that are restricted or committed to the
financing of particular activities, that compose a substantial portion of the inflows of the fund, and that are
reasonably expected to continue. Additional resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to the
purpose of the fund may also be reported in the fund.

* Student Activity Fund The Student Activity Fund is used to account separately for the operating ctivities
of the associated student body accounts that are not fiduciary in nature, including student clubs, general
operations, athletics, and other student body activities.

21

30



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

e Cafeteria Fund The Cafeteria Fund is used to account separately for Federal, State, and local resources to
operate the food service program (Education Code Sections 38090-38093) and is used only for those
expenditures authorized by the governing board as necessary for the operation of the District's food
service program (Education Code Sections 38091 and 38100).

Capital Project Funds The Capital Project funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the

acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and other capital assets (other than those financed by
proprietary funds and trust funds).

o Capital Facilities Fund The Capital Facilities Fund is used primarily to account separately for monies
received from fees levied on developers or other agencies as a condition of approving a development
{Education Code Sections 17620-17626). Expenditures are restricted to the purposes specified in
Government Code Sections 65970-65981 or to the items specified in agreements with the developer
(Government Code Section 66006).

¢ Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects The Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects
exists primarily to provide for the accumulation of General Fund monies for capital outlay purposes
{(Education Code Section 42840).

Basis of Accounting - Measurement Focus

Government-Wide Financial Statements The Government-wide Financial Statements are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This is the same approach used in
the preparation of the proprietary fund financial statements, but differs from the manner in which
governmental fund financial statements are prepared.

The government-wide Statement of Activities presents a comparison between expenses, both direct and
indirect, and program revenues for each governmental function, and excludes fiduciary activity. Direct expenses
are those that are specifically associated with a service, program, or department and are therefore clearly
identifiable to a particular function. The District does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the
Statement of Activities. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipients of the goods or services
offered by the programs and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as
general revenues. The comparison of program revenues and expenses identifies the extent to which each

function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the District. Eliminations have been made to
minimize the double counting of internal activities.

Net position should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on net position are either externally
imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other

governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The net position
restricted for other activities result from special revenue funds and the restrictions on their use.

22

31



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

fund Financial Statements Fund Financial Statements report detailed information about the District. The focus
of governmental and proprietary fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by

type. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a
single column.

e Governmental Funds All Governmental funds are accounted for using the flow of current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus,
only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances reports on the sources (revenues and other
financing sources) and uses (expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. This
approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the government-wide financial
statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements, therefore, include reconciliations with
brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide financial statements,
prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, and the
governmental fund financial statements, prepared using the flow of current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Revenues ~ Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which
each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes
place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable
and become available. Available means that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are
expected to be collected soon enough thereafter, to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. The
District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within one year after year-end, except for
property taxes, which are considered available if collected within 60 days. The following revenue sources are
considered to be both measurable and available at fiscal year-end: State apportionments, interest, certain
grants, and other local sources.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal value in return,
include property taxes, certain grants, entitlements, and donations. Revenue from property taxes is recognized
in the fiscal year in which the taxes are levied. Revenue from certain grants, entitlements, and donations is
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements
include time and purpose restrictions. On a modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions
must also be available before it can be recognized.

Unearned Revenue Unearned revenues arise when resources are received by the District before it has a legal
claim to them, such as when certain grants are received prior to the occurrence of qualifying expenditures. In
the subsequent periods, when the District has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is
removed from the balance sheet and the revenue is recognized.

Expenses/Expenditures On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are
incurred. The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in which
the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on long-term liabilities, which has not matured, are
recognized when paid in the governmental funds as expenditures. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation and
amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds but are recognized in the entity-wide statements.

23

32



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Cash equivalents also
include cash with county treasury balances for purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows.

Investments

Investments with original maturities greater than one year are stated at fair value. Fair value is estimated based
on quoted market prices at year-end. All investments not required to be reported at fair value are stated at cost
or amortized cost. Fair values of investments in county and State investment pools are determined by the
program sponsor.

Prepaid Expenditures (Expenses)

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of prepaid items is recorded as
expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when consumed rather than when purchased.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated with a fund are determined by
its measurement focus. Capital assets are long-lived assets of the District. The District maintains a capitalization
threshold of $5,000. Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not
add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life are not capitalized but are expensed as incurred.

When purchased, such assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds and capitalized in the
government-wide statement of net position. The valuation basis for capital assets is historical cost, or where

historical cost is not available, estimated historical cost based on replacement cost. Donated capital assets are
capitalized at acquisition value on the date donated.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives of the various classes of
depreciable capital assets are as follows: buildings, 20 to 50 years; improvements/infrastructure, 5 to 50 years;
equipment, 2 to 15 years.

Interfund Balances

On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are classified
as "interfund receivables/payables". These amounts are eliminated in the Statement of Net Position.

24

33



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned. The entire compensated absence
liability is reported on the government-wide statement of net position. For governmental funds, the current
portion of unpaid compensated absences is recognized upon the occurrence of relevant events such as
employee resignations and retirements that occur prior to year-end that have not yet been paid with
expendable available financial resources. These amounts are reported in the fund from which the employees
who have accumulated leave are paid.

Sick leave is accumulated without limit for each employee at the rate of one day for each month worked. Leave
with pay is provided when employees are absent for health reasons; however, the employees do not gain a
vested right to accumulated sick leave. Employees are never paid for any sick leave balance at termination of
employment or any other time. Therefore, the value of accumulated sick leave is not recognized as a liability in
the District's financial statements. However, credit for unused sick leave is applicable to all classified school
members who retire after January 1, 1999. At retirement, each member will receive .004 year of service credit
for each day of unused sick leave. Credit for unused sick leave is applicable to all certificated employees and is
determined by dividing the number of unused sick days by the number of base service days required to
complete the last school year, if employed full-time.

Compensated absences (unpaid employee vacation) for the District at June 30, 2020, amounted to $45,020. The
compensated absences will be paid by the fund for which the employee worked.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Liabilities

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term liabilities are reported in the government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are
paid in a timely manner and in full from current financial resources are reported as liabilities of the
governmental funds.

However, claims and judgments, compensated absences, special termination benefits, and contractually
required pension contributions that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund
financial statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current year. Long-term
liabilities are not recognized as liabilities in governmental funds but are disclosed in the notes to financial
statements. Debt service expenditures, including principal and interest, from bonds, capital leases or other
long-term loans, are recognized as expenditures in the governmental fund financial statements when paid.

Debt Issuance Costs, Premiums and Discounts

In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund type financial statements, long-term
liabilities are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund statement of net position. Debt premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs related to
prepaid insurance costs are amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method, which
approximates the effective interest method.

25

34



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

In governmental fund financial statements, bond premiums and discounts, as well as debt issuance costs are
recognized in the period the bonds are issued. The face amount of the debt is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuance are also reported as other financing sources. Issuance costs,

whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds, are reported as debt service expenditures in the period
the bonds are issued.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position also reports deferred outflows of resources. This separate
financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will
not be recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The District reports deferred outflows of resources
for deferred charges on refunding of debt, for pension related items, and for OPEB related items. The deferred
charge on refunding resulted from the difference between the carrying value of the refunded debt and its
reacquisition price. The amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or
refunding debt. The deferred amounts related to pension and OPEB relate to differences between expected and
actual earnings on investments, changes of assumptions, and other pension and OPEB related changes.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a
future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then. The District reports deferred inflows of
resources for deferred charges on refunding of debt, for pension related items, and for OPEB related items.

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the California State Teachers
Retirement System (CalSTRS) and the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plan for schools
(Plans) and additions to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same
basis as they are reported by CalSTRS and CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Member
contributions are recognized in the period in which they are earned. Investments are reported at fair value. The

net pension liability attributable to the governmental activities will be paid by the fund in which the employee
worked.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the California State Teachers
Retirement System (CalSTRS) and the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) plan for schools
(Plans) and additions to/deductions from the Plans' fiduciary net position have been determined on the same
basis as they are reported by CalSTRS and CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Member
contributions are recognized in the period in which they are earned. Investments are reported at fair value. The

net pension liability attributable to the governmental activities will be paid by the fund in which the employee
worked.

26

35



Vallecito Union School District

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
As of June 30, 2021, fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable - amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form or because they
are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or
the laws or regulations of other governments.

Committed - amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action of the
governing board. The governing board is the highest level of decision-making authority for the District.
Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through resolutions or other action as approved
by the governing board. The District currently does not have any committed funds.

Assigned - amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but that are
intended to be used for specific purposes. Under the District's adopted policy, only the governing board or chief
business officer/assistant superintendent of business services may assign amounts for specific purposes.

Unassigned - all other spendable amounts.

Spending Order Policy

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is
available, the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for
which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the District considers amounts to have
been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless
the governing board has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.

Fund Balance Policy

The District believes that sound financial management principles require that sufficient funds be retained by the
District to provide a stable financial base at all times. To retain this stable financial base, the District needs to
maintain unrestricted fund balance in its General Fund sufficient to fund cash flows of the District and to provide
financial reserves for unanticipated expenditures or revenue shortfalls of an emergency nature. The purpose of
the District's fund balance policy is to maintain a prudent level of financial resources to protect against reducing
service levels because of temporary revenue shortfalls or unpredicted one-time expenditures.

27

36



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources. Net position net of investment in capital assets, consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations
imposed on its use either through the enabling legislation or through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. The District applies restricted resources when an expense
is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available.

Interfund Activity

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as
expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a
requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other
financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after non-operating revenues/expenses in proprietary funds.
Repayments from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for
them are not presented in the financial statements.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Property Tax

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are payable in two
instaliments on November 1 and February 1 and become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively.
Unsecured property taxes are payable in one instaliment on or before August 31. The County of Calaveras bills
and collects the taxes on behalf of the District. Local property tax revenues are recorded when received.

Change in Accounting Principles

As of June 30, 2021, the District adopted GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this
Statement is to improve the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes
and how those activities should be reported. The requirements of this Statement will enhance consistency and
comparability by establishing specific criteria for identifying activities that should be reported as fiduciary
activities. Greater consistency and comparability enhances the value provided by the information reported in
financial statements for assessing government accountability and stewardship. The impact to the District
resulted in a reclassification of the District’s student body activities from fiduciary to governmental. The effect of
the implementation of this standard on beginning fund balance and net position is disclosed in Note 13.

28

37



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the
information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by
governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring
recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and
recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It
establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of
the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and
an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred
inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’
leasing activities. The requirements of this Statement are effective for the reporting periods beginning after June
15, 2021. Early implementation is encouraged. The effects of this change on the District’s financial statements
have not yet been determined.

In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a
Construction Period. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and comparability of
information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simplify accounting
for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. The requirements of this Statement are
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020. Earlier application is encouraged. The
requirements of this Statement should be applied prospectively. The effects of this change on the District’s
financial statements have not yet been determined.

In May 2019, the GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. The primary objectives of this
Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate
diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with
conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. The requirements of this Statement are effective for
the reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021. Early implementation is encouraged. The effects of
this change on the District’s financial statements have not yet been determined.

In January 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020. The objectives of this statement are to
enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative
literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of
certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics and includes specific provisions about the
following:

¢ The effective date of Statement No. 87, Leases, and Implementation Guide No. 2019-3, Leases, for
interim financial reporting.

* Reporting of intra-entity transfers of assets between a primary government employer and a
component unit defined benefit pension plan or defined benefit other postemployment benefit
(OPEB) plan.

* The applicability of Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related
Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement No. 68, and Amendments to Certain
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68, as amended, and No. 74, Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, as amended, to reporting assets
accumulated for postemployment benefits.

29

38



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

The applicability of certain requirements of Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, to
postemployment benefit arrangements.

Measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any) related to asset retirement obligations (AROs) in a
government acquisition.

Reporting by public entity risk pools for amounts that are recoverable from reinsurers or excess
insurers.

Reference to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets or liabilities in authoritative literature.

Terminology used to refer to derivative instruments.

The requirements of this Statement are effective as follows:

The requirements related to the effective date of Statement 87 and Implementation Guide 2019-3,
reinsurance recoveries, and terminology used to refer to derivative instruments are effective upon
issuance.

The requirements related to intra-entity transfers of assets and those related to the applicability of
Statements 73 and 74 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021.

The requirements related to application of Statement 84 to postemployment benefit arrangements
and those related to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets or liabilities are effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021.

The requirements related to the measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any) associated with AROs

in a government acquisition are effective for government acquisitions occurring in reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2021.

Early implementation is encouraged. The effects of this change on the District’s financial statements have not
yet been determined.

Note 2 -

Deposits and Investments

Summary of Deposits and Investments

Deposits and investments as of June 30, 2021, are classified as governmental funds and consist of the following:

Cash with fiscal agent S 93,305
Cash in bank 157,138
Cash in revolving 3,000
Cash awaiting deposit 20,900
Investments with county treasurer 7,075,174

Total deposits and investments $ 7,349,517

30

39



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Policies and Practices

The District is authorized under California Government Code to make direct investments in local agency bonds,

notes, or warrants within the State; U.S. Treasury instruments; registered State warrants or treasury notes;
securities of the U.S. Government, or its agencies; bankers acceptances; commercial paper; certificates of
deposit placed with commercial banks and/or savings and loan companies; repurchase or reverse repurchase
agreements; medium term corporate notes; shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management

companies, certificates of participation, obligations with first priority security; and collateralized mortgage
obligations.

Investment in County Treasury - The District is considered to be an involuntary participant in an external
investment pool as the District is required to deposit all receipts and collections of monies with their County
Treasurer (Education Code Section 41001). The fair value of the District's investment in the pool is reported in
the accounting financial statements at amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the amortized cost
which approximates fair value provided by the County Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to the
amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records
maintained by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on the amortized cost basis. The pool is not registered
with Security Exchange Commission {SEC).

General Authorizations

Limitations as they relate to interest rate risk and concentration of credit risk are indicated in the schedules
below:

Maximum Maximum Maximum
Authorized Remaining Percentage Investment
Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None
Registered State Bonds, Notes, Warrants S years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None
Banker's Acceptance 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1vyear None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% of base None
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 5years 30% None
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% None
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None
Joint Powers Authority Pools N/A None None
31

40



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Interest Rate Risk

interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates. The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates, but the
District adheres to the California Government Code as summarized above. The District manages its exposure to
interest rate risk by depositing substantially all of its funds in the County Treasury Pool and purchasing a
combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows maturities so that a portion
of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow
and liquidity needed for operations. The District's deposits with the County Treasurer at June 30, 2021
approximates cost, and the weighted average life of pool investments was 1.18 years.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.
This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The
District's investment in County Pool is not required to be rated, nor has it been rated as of June 30, 2021.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District's deposits may not be returned to it. The District
does not have a policy for custodial credit risk for deposits. However, the California Government Code requires
that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an
undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental
unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total
amount deposited by the public agency. As of June 30, 2021, all the District’s deposits are within federal
depository insurance coverage.

Note 3- Receivables

Receivables at June 30, 2021, consisted of intergovernmental grants, entitlements, interest and other local
sources. All receivables are considered collectible in full.

Non-Major
General Governmental
Fund Funds Total
Federal Government
Categorical aid S 178,889 S 13,106 S 191,995
State Government
Categorical aid - 970 970
Local Government
Other local sources 156,520 - 156,520
Total $ 335,409 $ 14,076 $ 349,485

32

41



Vallecito Union School District

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021
Note4 - Interfund Transactions
Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2021, consisted of the following:
The General Fund transferred to the Cafeteria Non-Major Governmental Fund to
cover deficit spending S 85,000
The General Fund transferred to the Special Reserve Non-Major Governmental Fund
for Capital Outlay Projects to support the programs. 30,000
Total S 115,000
Note5- Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, was as follows:
Balance Balance
July 1, 2020 Additions Deductions June 30, 2021
Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land S 320,046 S - S - $ 320,046
Construction in progress 3,872,701 8,938,448 (11,123,117) 1,688,032
Total capital assets
not being depreciated 4,192,747 8,938,448 (11,123,117) 2,008,078
Capital assets being depreciated
Land improvements 2,768,875 - - 2,768,875
Buildings and improvements 12,034,110 11,123,117 - 23,157,227
Furniture and equipment 912,668 - - 912,668
Total capital assets being depreciated 15,715,653 11,123,117 - 26,838,770
Total capital assets 19,908,400 20,061,565 (11,123,117) 28,846,848
Accumulated depreciation
Land improvements 2,726,694 42,181 - 2,768,875
Buildings and improvements 7,978,527 730,219 - 8,708,746
Furniture and equipment 882,550 1,141 - 883,691
Total accumulated depreciation 11,587,771 773,541 - 12,361,312
Governmental activities
Capital assets, net S 8,320,629 $19,288,024 $(11,123,117) $ 16,485,536

33

42



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Depreciation expense was charged as a direct expense to governmental functions as follows:

Governmental Activities

Instruction S 422,940
Supervision of instruction 5,627
Instructional library, media, and technology 11,070
School site administration 76,473
Home-to-school transportation 26,174
Food services 24,905
All other pupil services 48,493
Data processing 1,339
All other administration 75,710
Plant services 80,710
Ancillary services 100
Total depreciation expenses governmental activities S 773,541

Note 6- Accounts Payable

Accounts payable at June 30, 2021, consisted of the following:

General Fund Non-Major Total

Vendor payables  $ 169,452 S 9,364 S 178,816

Note 7- Long-Term Liabilities Other Than Pension and OPEB
Summary

The changes in the District’s long-term liabilities other than OPEB and pensions during the year consisted of the
following:

Balance Balance Duein
July 1, 2020 Additions Deductions  June 30, 2021 One Year

Long-Term Liabilities
General obligation bonds  $ 11,902,403 $ 2,800,000 $ 708,606 S 13,993,797 $ 369,339

GOB accreted interest 2,642,257 - 791,391 1,850,863 865,660
Unamortized premiums - 486,986 9,838 477,148 29,514
Compensated absences 33,993 24,624 13,597 45,020 18,000

Total $14578653 S 3,311,610 $ 1,523,435 $ 16,366,828 $ 1,282,513

Payments on the general obligation bonds (GOB) are made by the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund with
local revenues.

34

43



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021
Bonded Debt
The outstanding general obligation bonded debt is as follows:
Final Bonds Bonds
Issuance Maturity Interest Original Outstanding Issued/ Refunded/ Outstanding
Date Date Rate Issue July 1, 2020 Accreted Redeemed June 30, 2021
Principal
1998 2023 3.65-5.20% $ 5,443,053 $ 1,106,524 S - § 363606 S 742,918
2019 2023 1.90% 10,795,879 10,795,879 - - 10,795,879
2020 2037 0.35-4.00% 2,800,000 - 2,800,000 345,000 2,455,000
Accreted interest to-date
1998 2023  3.65-5.20% 2,598,476 2,408,346 - 791,394 1,616,952
2019 2023 1.90% 659,121 233,911 - - 233,911
$14,544,660 $ 2,800,000 $ 1,500,000 S 15,844,660
Debt Service Requirements to Maturity
The bonds mature through 2023 as follows:
Bonds Maturing Initial Accreted Accreted Unaccreted Maturity
Fiscal Year Bond Value Interest Obligation Interest Value
2022 $ 369,339 S 803,849 $ 1,173,188 S 61,811 S 1,234,999
2023 11,169,458 1,047,014 12,216,472 553,529 12,770,001
Total $ 11,538,797 $ 1,850,863 $ 13,389,660 S 615,340 $ 14,005,000
The current interest bonds mature as follows:
Bonds Maturing
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2022 S - $ 92,151 S 92,151
2023 - 98,200 98,200
2024 150,000 95,200 245,200
2025 165,000 88,900 253,900
2026 180,000 82,000 262,000
2027-2031 755,000 307,100 1,062,100
2032-2036 800,000 165,800 965,800
2037-2038 405,000 16,300 421,300
Total $ 2,455,000 S 945,651 S 3,400,651

35

44



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Note 8 - Total Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Liability

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the District reported total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources,
deferred inflows of resources, and OPEB expense as follows:

Total OPEB Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows OPEB
OPEB Plan Liability of Resources of Resources Expense
District Plan S 526,088 S 101,772 S 460,859 S 45,137

The detail of the District Plan is as follows:
Plan Administration

The District's governing board administers the Postemployment Benefits Plan (the Plan). The Plan is a single-
employer defined benefit plan that is used to provide postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB) for
eligible retirees and their spouses. Board designated amount of the plan is presented in these financial
statements as the assigned fund balance in the General Fund. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets
the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.

Plan Membership

At June 30, 2021, the valuation date, the Plan membership consisted only 50 active employees.

Benefits Provided

The Plan provides health care benefits, in accordance with District employment contracts, to all employees who
retire from the District on or after attaining age 55 with at least 15 years of service until the age of 65. Benefits
are provided through a third-party insurer, and the full cost of benefits is covered by the Plan. The District's
governing board has the authority to establish and amend the benefit terms as contained within the negotiated
labor agreements.

Contributions

The contribution requirements of the Plan members and the District are established and may be amended by
the District. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. The District
offers medical insurance and prescription drug benefits to its employees and retirees through California's Valued
Trust (CVT), a jointly manage trust, on a pooled, self-insurance basis. A separate three-tiered rate structure
applies to retirees under the age of 65. Four medical and prescription drug options are offered to each retiree
group as follows: Blue Cross PPO options 1A, 4A, 6A and 8A. Dental and vision coverage are also provided
through CVT. For the measurement period of June 30, 2021, the District contributed $86,815 to the Plan, all of
the amount was used to paid for the current year premium.

36

45



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using the following assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation 250 %
Salary increases 275 %
Investment rate of return 220 %
Healthcare cost trend rates 4,00 %

The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyer 20-bond General Obligation Index.

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table for Males or

Females, as appropriate, without projection. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014
Health Annuitant Mortality Table for Males or Females, as appropriate, without projection. Mortality rates vary
by age and sex. (Unisex mortality rates are not often used as individual OPEB benefits do not depend on the
mortality table used.) If employees die prior to retirement, past contributions are available to fund benefits for
employees who live to retirement. After retirement, death results in benefit termination or reduction. Although
higher mortality rates reduce service costs, the mortality assumption is not likely to vary from employer to
employer.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results of an actual experience
study for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2020.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB
Liability

Balance, June 30, 2019 ) 824,044
Service cost 70,045
Interest 25,921
Differences between expected and actual experience (60,128)
Changes of assumptions or other inputs {246,266)
Benefit payments (87,528)
Net change in total OPEB liability (297,956)
Balance, June 30, 2020 S 526,088

37

46



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net/total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's net/total OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percent lower or higher than the current

rate:

Discount Rate

1% decrease (2.13% decreasing to 1.20%)
Current discount rate (3.13% decreasing to 2.20%)
1% increase (4.13% decreasing to 3.20%)

Total OPEB

$

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

Liability

558,979
526,088
493,990

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's total OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percent lower or higher than the current

healthcare costs trend rates:

Total OPEB
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates Liability
1% decrease (4.00% decreasing to 3.00%) $ 466,192
Current healthcare cost trend rate {5.00% decreasing to 4.00%) 526,088
1% increase (6.00% decreasing to 5.00%) 596,014

Total OPEB Liability and OPEB Expense

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized OPEB expense of $45,137. At June 30, 2021, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflow of resources related to OPEB from the

following sources:

OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions

Total

Deferred Outflows

Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
S 86,815 S -
- 230,797
14,957 230,062
S 101,772 S 460,859

38



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be
recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Deferred
Year Ended Outflows/(Inflows)
June 30, of Resources
2022 S (50,829)
2023 (50,829)
2024 (50,829)
2025 (50,829)
2026 {50,829)
Thereafter (191,757)
Total $ (445,902)
Note 9- Fund Balances
Fund balances are composed of the following elements:
Bond
Interest and Non-Major
General Building Redemption Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
Nonspendable
Revolving cash S 3,000 $ - S - S - S 3,000
Restricted
Food service - - - 47,235 47,235
Capital projects 61,663 883,685 - 177,815 1,123,163
Debt services - - 1,697,670 - 1,697,670
Student activities - - - 142,264 142,264
Total restricted 308,422 883,685 1,697,670 367,314 3,257,091
Assigned
Sciences Adptions 113,373 - - - 113,373
OPEB 783,529 - - - 783,529
Capital project 134,798 - - 207,116 341,914
Total assigned 1,031,700 - - 207,116 1,238,816
Unassigned
Reserve for economic
uncertainties 2,855,495 - - - 2,855,495
Total $ 4198617 $ 883685 S 1,697,670 S 574,430 S 7,354,402

39



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Note 10 - Employee Retirement Systems

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained by
agencies of the State of California. Academic employees are members of the California State Teachers'

Retirement System (CalSTRS) and classified employees are members of the California Public Employees'
Retirement System (CalPERS).

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the District reported net pension liabilities, deferred outflows of resources,
deferred inflows of resources, and pension expense for each of the above plans as follows:

Net Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Pension Plan Pension Liability of Resources of Resources Pension Expense
CalSTRS S 5,105,806 S 1,459,290 S 363,994 S 707,833
CalPERS 3,467,940 700,488 94,511 673,624
Total S 8,573,746 S 2,159,778 $ 458,505 $ 1,381,457

The details of each plan are as follows:
California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS)

Plan Description

The District contributes to the State Teachers Retirement Plan (STRP) administered by the California State
Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS). STRP is a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement
system defined benefit pension plan. Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as legislatively
amended, within the State Teachers' Retirement Law.

A full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions (for funding, but not accounting
purposes), and membership information is listed in the June 30, 2019, annual actuarial valuation report, Defined
Benefit Program Actuarial Valuation. This report and CalSTRS audited financial information are publicly available
reports that can be found on the CalSTRS website under Publications at:
www.calstrs.com/member-publications.

Benefits Provided

The STRP provides retirement, disability and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefits are based on members'
final compensation, age and years of service credit. Members hired on or before December 31, 2012, with five
years of credited service are eligible for the normal retirement benefit at age 60. Members hired on or after
January 1, 2013, with five years of credited service are eligible for the normal retirement benefit at age 62. The
normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final compensation for each year of credited service.

40

49



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

The STRP is comprised of four programs: Defined Benefit Program, Defined Benefit Supplement Program, Cash
Balance Benefit Program and Replacement Benefits Program. The STRP holds assets for the exclusive purpose of
providing benefits to members and beneficiaries of these programs. CalSTRS also uses plan assets to defray
reasonable expenses of administering the STRP. Although CalSTRS is the administrator of the STRP, the state is
the sponsor of the STRP and obligor of the trust. In addition, the state is both an employer and nonemployer
contributing entity to the STRP.

The District contributes exclusively to the STRP Defined Benefit Program thus, disclosures are not included for
the other plans.

The STRP provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2021, are summarized as follows:

STRP Defined Benefit Program

On or before On or after
Hire date December 31, 2012 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% at 60 2% at 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirement age 60 62
Monthly benefits as a percentage of eligible compensation 2.0% - 2.4% 2.0% - 2.4%
Required employee contribution rate 10.25% 10.205%
Required employer contribution rate 16.15% 16.15%
Required state contribution rate 10.328% 10.328%

Contributions

Required member, District and State of California contributions rates are set by the California Legislature and
Governor and detailed in Teachers' Retirement Law. The contributions rates are expressed as a level percentage
of payroll using the entry age normal actuarial method. In accordance with AB 1469, employer contributions
into the CalSTRS will be increasing to a total of 19.1 percent of applicable member earnings phased over a seven
year period. The contribution rates for each plan for the year ended June 30, 2021, are presented above and
the District's total contributions were $442,435.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2021, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that
reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the District
as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related state support and the total portion of the net
pension liability that was associated with the District were as follows:

Total net pension liability, including State share

Proportionate share of net pension liability $ 5,105,806
State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 2,632,044
Total S 7,737,850

41

50



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019. The District's proportion of the net pension liability
was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
projected contributions of all participating school districts and the State, actuarially determined. The District's
proportionate share for the measurement period June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018, respectively was 0.0053
percent and 0.0053 percent, resulting in a net change in the proportionate share of 0.0000 percent.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized pension expense of $707,833. In addition, the District
recognized pension expense and revenue of $368,723 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2021, the

District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date S 442,435 ) -
Change in proportion and differences between contributions
made and District's proportionate share of contributions 388,673 220,002
Differences between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 121,284 -
Differences between expected and actual experience
in the measurement of the total pension liability 9,009 143,992
Changes of assumptions 497,889 -
Total S 1,459,290 S 363,994

The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent fiscal year.
The deferred outflows (inflows) of resources related to the difference between projected and actual earnings on

pension plan investments are amortized over a closed five-year period and will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Deferred
Year Ended Outflows/(Inflows)
June 30, of Resources
2021 $ (74,007)
2022 41,324
2023 82,445
2024 71,522
Total S 121,284

The deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources related to the change in proportion and differences between
contributions made and District’s proportionate share of contributions, differences between expected and
actual experience in the measurement of the total pension liability, and changes of assumptions will be
amortized over the Expected Average Remaining Service Life (EARSL) of all members that are provided benefits
{active, inactive, and retirees) as of the beginning of the measurement period.

42

51



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

The EARSL for the measurement period is seven years and will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred
Year Ended Outflows/(Inflows)
June 30, of Resources

2021 S 152,711
2022 137,164
2023 176,668
2024 19,011
2025 51,118
Thereafter (5,095)
Total S 531,577

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Total pension liability for STRP was determined by applying update procedures to the financial reporting
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2020. The
financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, used the following methods and assumptions, applied
to all prior periods included in the measurement:

Valuation date June 30, 2019

Measurement date June 30, 2020

Experience study July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2015
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Discount rate 7.10%

Investment rate of return 7.10%

Consumer price inflation 2.75%

Wage growth 3.50%

CalSTRS uses a generational mortality assumption, which involves the use of a base mortality table and
projection scales to reflect expected annual reductions in mortality rates at each age, resulting in increases in
life expectancies each year into the future. The base mortality tables are CalSTRS custom tables derived to best
fit the patterns of mortality among its members. The projection scale was set equal to 110 percent of the

ultimate improvement factor from the Mortality Improvement Scale (MP-2016) table, issued by the Society of
Actuaries.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The best estimate ranges were
developed using capital market assumptions from CalSTRS general investment consultant (Pension Consulting
Alliance-PCA) as an input to the process. The actuarial investment rate of return assumption was adopted by the
board in February 2017 in conjunction with the most recent experience study. For each future valuation,
CalSTRS consulting actuary (Milliman) reviews the return assumption for reasonableness based on the most
current capital market assumptions.

43

52



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Best estimates of 20-year geometrically-linked real rates of return and the assumed asset allocation for each
major asset class for the year ended June 30, 2020, are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Assumed Asset Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Public equity 42% 4.8%
Real estate 15% 3.6%
Private equity 13% 6.3%
Fixed income 12% 1.3%
Risk mitigating strategies 10% 1.8%
Inflation sensitive 6% 3.3%
Cash/liquidity 2% -0.4%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10 percent. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed the contributions from plan members and employers will be made at
statutory contribution rates. Projected inflows from investment earnings were calculated using the long-term
assumed investment rate of return (7.10 percent) and assuming that contributions, benefit payments and
administrative expense occurred midyear. Based on these assumptions, the STRP's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the
long-term assumed investment rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine total pension liability.

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the current
discount rate as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
one percent lower or higher than the current rate:

Net Pension
Discount Rate Liability
1% decrease {6.10%) S 7,714,162
Current discount rate (7.10%) 5,105,806
1% increase (8.10%) 2,952,241

California Public Employees' Retirement System {CalPERS)

Plan Description

Qualified employees are eligible to participate in the School Employer Pool (SEP) under the California Public
Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system

defined benefit pension plan administered by CalPERS. Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as
legislatively amended, within the Public Employees' Retirement Law.

44

53



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

A full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions (for funding, but not accounting
purposes), and membership information is listed in the June 30, 2019 annual actuarial valuation report, Schools
Pool Actuarial Valuation. These reports and CalPERS audited financial information are publicly available reports
that can be found on the CalPERS website under Forms and Publications at:
https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/forms-publications.

Benefits Provided

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits
to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of service
credit, a benefit factor and the member's final compensation. Members hired on or before December 31, 2012,
with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. Members hired
on or after January 1, 2013, with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 52 with statutorily reduced
benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after five years of service. The Basic Death
Benefit is paid to any member's beneficiary if the member dies while actively employed. An employee's eligible
survivor may receive the 1957 Survivor Benefit if the member dies while actively employed, is at least age 50 (or
52 for members hired on or after January 1, 2013), and has at least five years of credited service. The cost of
living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees' Retirement Law.

The CalPERS provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2021, are summarized as follows:

School Employer Pool (CalPERS)

On or before On or after
Hire date December 31, 2012 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% at 55 2% at 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirement age 55 62
Monthly benefits as a percentage of eligible compensation 1.1%-2.5% 1.0%-2.5%
Required employee contribution rate 7.00% 7.00%
Required employer contribution rate 20.70% 20.70%

Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution
rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July
1 following notice of a change in the rate. Total plan contributions through the CalPERS annual actuarial
valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued
liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the
contribution rate of employees. The contributions rates are expressed as percentage of annual payroll. The
contribution rates for each plan for the year ended June 30, 2021, are presented above and the total District
contributions were $339,982.

45

54



Vallecito Union School District

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to Pensions

As of June 30, 2021, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate share of the CalPERS net
pension liability totaling $3,027,564. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, The District's
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating school districts,
actuarially determined. The District's proportionate share for the measurement period June 30, 2020 and
June 30, 2019, respectively was 0.0113 percent and 0.0104 percent, resulting in a net increase in the
proportionate share of 0.0009 percent.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized pension expense of $464,660. At June 30, 2021, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date S 339,982 S -
Change in proportion and differences between contributions
made and District’s proportionate share of contributions 103,598 94,511
Differences between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments 72,192 -
Differences between expected and actual experience
in the measurement of the total pension liability 171,999 -
Changes of assumptions 12,717 -
Total S 700,488 ) 94,511

The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent fiscal year.

The deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources related to the difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments are amortized over a closed five-year period and will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Deferred
Year Ended Outflows/(Inflows)
June 30, of Resources
2022 $ (27,015)
2023 24,098
2024 41,884
2025 33,225
Total S 72,192

46

55



Vallecito Union School District

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

The deferred outflows/{inflows) of resources related to the change in proportion and differences between
contributions made and District’s proportionate share of contributions, differences between expected and actual
experience in the measurement of the total pension liability, and changes of assumptions will be amortized over
the Expected Average Remaining Service Life (EARSL) of all members that are provided benefits (active, inactive,
and retirees) as of the beginning of the measurement period. The EARSL for the measurement period is 4.1 years
and will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred
Year Ended Outflows/(Inflows)
June 30, of Resources
2022 S 67,326
2023 73,259
2024 48,630
2025 4,588
Total S 193,803

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Total pension liability for the SEP was determined by applying update procedures to the financial reporting
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2020. The
financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, used the following methods and assumptions, applied
to all prior periods included in the measurement:

Valuation date June 30, 2018

Measurement date June 30, 2019

Experience study July 1, 1997 through June 30, 2015
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Discount rate 7.15%

Investment rate of return 7.15%

Consumer price inflation 2.50%

Wage growth Varies by entry age and service

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The table includes 15 years of mortality
improvements using Society of Actuaries 90 percent of scale MP-2016.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-
term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of
all the funds' asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term (first ten years)
and the long-term (11, years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both
short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of
return was set by calculating the rounded single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present
value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The
expected rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to
account for assumed administrative expenses.

47

56



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Assumed Asset Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Global equity 50% 5.98%
Fixed income 28% 2.62%
Inflation assets 0% 1.81%
Private equity 8% 7.23%
Real assets 13% 4.93%
Liquidity 1% -0.92%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed the contributions from plan members and employers will be made at
statutory contribution rates. Based on these assumptions, the School Employer Pool fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the
long-term assumed investment rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine total pension liability.

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the current
discount rate as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
one percent lower or higher than the current rate:

Net Pension
Discount Rate Liability
1% decrease (6.15%) $ 4,985,796
Current discount rate (7.15%) 3,467,940
1% increase {8.15%) 2,208,196

Social Security

As established by Federal law, all public sector employees who are not members of their employer's existing
retirement system (CalSTRS or CalPERS) must be covered by Social Security or an alternative plan. The District
has elected to use social security as its alternative plan. Contributions made by the District and an employee
vest immediately. The District contributes 6.2 percent of an employee's gross earnings. An employee is
required to contribute 6.2 percent of his or her gross earnings to the pension plan.

48

57



Vallecito Union School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

On Behalf Payments

The State of California makes contributions to CalSTRS on behalf of the District. These payments consist of State
General Fund contributions to CalSTRS in the amount of $368,723 for fiscal year ending June 30, 2021,
respectively (10.328 percent of annual payroll). Contributions are no longer appropriated in the annual Budget
Act for the legislatively mandated benefits to CalPERS. Therefore, there is no on-behalf contribution rate for
CalPERS. Under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these amounts are to

be reported as revenues and expenditures. Accordingly, these amounts have been recorded on the financial
statements.

Senate Bill 90 (Chapter 33, Statutes of 2019), which was signed by the Governor on June 27, 2019, appropriated
an additional 2020-2021 contribution on-behalf of school employers of $1.1 billion for CalSTRS. A proportionate
share of these contributions have been recorded in these financial statements.

Note 11 - Commitments and Contingencies

Grants

The District received financial assistance from Federal and State agencies in the form of grants. The
disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions
specified in the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims
resulting from such audits could become a liability of the General Fund or other applicable funds. However, in
the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material adverse effect on the overall
financial position of the District at June 30, 2021.

Note 12 - Participation in Public Entity Risk Pools, Joint Powers Authorities and Other Related Party
Transactions

The District participates in a joint venture under joint powers agreement, the Tuolumne Joint Powers Authority
(JPA) for workers' compensation and property and liability. The relationships between the District and the JPA is
such that the JPA is not a component unit of the District for financial reporting purposes.

The JPA arranges and provides for their members. Each JPA is governed by a board consisting of a representative
from each member district. Each board controls the operations of their IPA, including is a member of three joint
powers agreements (JPAs) with Tuolumne Joint Powers Authority (JPA) for property and liability insurance and
workers' compensation insurance, and Calaveras County Office of Education for long-term financing. The
relationship between the District and the JPA is such that the JPA not component unit of the District for financial
reporting purposes.

The JPAs arrange for and/or provide coverage for their members. The JPAs are governed by boards consisting of
a representative from each member district. The boards control the operations of their JPAs, including selection
of management and approval of operating budgets independent of any influence by the member districts
beyond their representation on the boards. Each member district pays a premium commensurate with the level
of coverage requested and share surpluses and deficits proportionately to their participation in each JPA, During
the year ended June 30, 2021, the District made payments of $169,700.

49

58



Vallecito Union School District

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

Note 13 - Restatement of Prior Year Net Position and Fund Balance

As of July 1, 2020, the District adopted GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities (GASB 84). As a result of the
implementation of GASB 84, the District has reclassified its associated student body activity previously reported
as fiduciary funds to a governmental fund — Student Activity Fund. The following table describes the effects of

the implementation on beginning fund balance/net position (deficit).

Beginning Fund Balance previously reported at June 30, 2020
Reclassification of student activity funds from agency funds
to a special revenue fund

Fund Balance - Beginning as Restated June 30, 2020

Governmental Activities
Beginning Net Position (Deficit) Governmental Activity previously
reported at June 30, 2020
Reclassification of student activity funds from agency

funds to a special revenue fund

Net Position (Deficit) - Beginning as Restated

Non-Major Total
Governmental Governmental
Funds Funds
S 141,055 S 12,473,390

100,985 100,985
S 242,040 S 12,574,375

$ (1,248,718)

100,985

$ (1,147,733)

50

59



This page intentional left blank.



%}3’ Required Supplementary Information
June 30, 2021

Vallecito Union School District

eidehailly.com

61



Vallecito Union School District
Budgetary Comparison Schedule — General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2021
Variances -
Positive
(Negative)
Budgeted Amounts Fina
Original Final Actual to Actual
Revenues

Local control funding formula S 7173465 S 7549475 S 7,631,775 § 82,300

Federal sources 283,000 825,595 836,541 10,946

Other State sources 392,452 442,345 665,958 223,613

Other local sources 60,000 133,140 26,386 (106,754)

Total revenues 7,908,917 8,950,555 9,160,660 210,105
Expenditures
Current
Certificated salaries 2,839,580 3,125,937 3,047,120 78,817
Classified salaries 1,718,086 1,910,478 1,625,403 285,075
Employee benefits 1,925,557 2,050,636 1,931,031 119,605
Books and supplies 547,212 935,538 760,093 175,445
Services and operating expenditures 1,057,429 1,103,844 1,053,234 50,610
Other outgo 20,001 46,927 61,536 (14,609)
Total expenditures 8,107,865 9,173,360 8,478,417 694,943
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures (198,948) (222,805) 682,243 905,048
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers out (66,444) (66,444) (146,440) (79,996)
Net Change in Fund Balances (265,392) (289,249) 535,803 825,052
Fund Balance - Beginning 2,682,824 2,682,824 2,682,824 -
Fund Balance - Ending $ 2,417,432 $ 2,393,575 3,218,627 $ 825,052
Deferred Maintenance Fund 61,663
Special Reserve Fund - Other Than Capital Outlay 134,798
Special Reserve Fund - Postemployment Benefits 783,529

$ 4,198,617

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information

51

62



Vallecito Union School District
Schedule of Changes in the District’s Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Year Ended June 30, 2021
2021 2020 2019 2018
Total OPEB Liability
Service cost S 70,045 S 66,024 S 68,002 S 58,224
Interest 25,921 28,917 29,822 28,517
Difference between expected
and actual experience (60,128) - (265,705) -
Changes of assumptions (246,266) 19,783 (3,094) -
Benefit payments (87,528) {46,539) (51,463) (38,764)
Net change in total OPEB liability (297,956) 68,185 (222,438) 47,977
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 824,044 755,859 978,297 930,320
Total OPEB Liability - Ending $ 526088 S 824,044 S 755859 § 978,297
Covered Employee Payroll 4,511,178 4,511,178 4,293,426 3,077,860
Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage
of Covered Employee Payroll 11.66% 18.27% 17.61% 31.78%
Measurement Date June 30,2020  June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018  June 30, 2017

Note: In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information

52

63



¥9

Vallecito Union School District

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Year Ended June 30, 2021

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
CalSTRS
Proportion of the net pension liability 0.0053% 0.0053% 0.0047% 0.0050% 0.0049% 0.0052% 0.0050%
Proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 5,105,806 $ 4,771,079 S 4,311,029 $ 4,594,845 S 3,987,536 $ 3,513,206 S 2,921,850
State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 2,632,044 2,602,942 2,468,266 2,718,271 2,270,033 1,858,099 1,869,053
Total $ 7,737,850 $ 7,374,021 $ 6,779,295 S 7,313,116 S 6,257,569 S 5,371,305 $ 4,790,903
Covered payroll S 2,856,456 S 2,867,817 $ 2,487,066 S 2,679,082 S 2,422,083 2,376,485 2,376,479

Proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered payroll 179% 166% 173% 172% 165% 148% 123%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability 72% 73% 71% 69% 70% 74% 74%

Measurement Date June 30,2020 June 30,2019 June 30,2018 June 30,2017 June 30,2016 June 30,2015 June 30,2014

CalPERS
Proportion of the net pension liability 0.0113% 0.0104% 0.0106% 0.0121% 0.0117% 0.0113% 0.0121%
Proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 3,467,940 S 3,027,564 S 2,825,574 S 2,890,069 S 2,308,996 § 1,669,836 $ 1,373,645

$ 1,639,848 $ 1,434,473 S 1,399,884 $ 1,541,777 S 1,254,282 1,287,631 1,287,406

Covered payroll

Proportionate share of the net pension liability

as a percentage of its covered payroll 211% 211% 202% 187% 184% 130% 107%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

total pension liability 70% 70% 71% 72% 74% 79% 83%
Measurement Date June 30,2020 June 30,2019 June 30,2018 June 30,2017 lJune 30,2016 June 30,2015 June 30,2014

Note: In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information 53



69

Vallecito Union School District
Schedule of the District’s Pension Contributions

Year Ended June 30, 2021
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
CalSTRS
Contractually required contribution $ 442,435 $ 488,454 S 466307 S 359,381 S 186,732 $ 215,081 $ 196,060
Less contributions in relation to the contractually
required contribution 442,435 488,454 466,307 359,381 186,732 212,818 196,060
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ -8 - $ - S 2,263 S -
Covered payroll $ 2,739,084 $ 2,856,456 S 2,867,817 S 2,487,066 S 2,679,082 S 2,422,083 $ 2,376,485
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 16.15% 17.10% 16.26% 14.45% 6.97% 8.88% 8.25%
CalPERS
Contractually required contribution $ 339,982 $ 323,378 $§ 260,070 $ 217,542 S 214,122 S 147,629 $ 147,305
Less contributions in relation to the contractually
required contribution 339,982 323,378 260,070 217,542 214,122 147,629 147,305
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - S - S - 8 - S - $ - $ -
Covered payroll $ 1,648,935 S 1,639,848 S 1,434473 $ 1,399,884 S§ 1,541,777 $§ 1,254,282 $ 1,287,631
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 20.62% 19.72% 18.13% 15.54% 13.89% 11.77% 11.44%
Note: In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.
54

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information



Vallecito Union School District
Note to Required Supplementary Information
June 30, 2021

Note1- Purpose of Schedules
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

The District employs budget control by object codes and by individual appropriation accounts. Budgets are
prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United State of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and
provisions of the California Education Code. The governing board is required to hold a public hearing and adopt
an operating budget no later than July 1 of each year. The adopted budget is subject to amendment throughout
the year to give consideration to unanticipated revenue and expenditures primarily resulting from events
unknown at the time of budget adoption with the legal restriction that expenditures cannot exceed
appropriations by major object account.

The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts when
the original appropriations were adopted. The amounts reported as the final budgeted amounts in the
budgetary statements reflect the amounts after all budget amendments have been accounted for.

This schedule presents information for the original and final budgets and actual results of operations, as well as
the variances from the final budget to actual results of operations.

Schedule of Changes in the District's Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

This schedule presents information on the District's changes in the total OPEB liability, including beginning and
ending balances, and the total OPEB liability. In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information
will be presented. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement
No. 75.

o Changes in Benefit Terms — There were no changes in benefit terms since the previous valuations for
OPEB.

e Changes of Assumptions — The actuarial assumption on salary increases decreased from 3.00% to 2.75%.
The Investment rate of return decreased from 3.13% to 2.20%. The Healthcare cost trend rates decreased
from 5.00% to 4.00%.

Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
This schedule presents information on the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability (NPL), the
plans' fiduciary net position and, when applicable, the State's proportionate share of the NPL associated with
the District. In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.

e Changes in Benefit Terms — There were no changes in benefit terms since the previous valuations for both

CalSTRS and CalPERS.

e Changes of Assumptions — There were no changes in economic assumptions for either the CalSTRS or
CalPERS plans from the previous valuations.

55

66



Vallecito Union School District
Note to Required Supplementary information
June 30, 2021

Schedule of District’s Pension Contributions
This schedule presents information on the District's required contribution, the amounts actually contributed,

and any excess or deficiency related to the required contribution. In the future, as data becomes available, ten
years of information will be presented.

56

67



This page intentional left blank.

68



W} Supplementary Information
June 30, 2021

Vallecito Union School District

eidebailly.com

69



Vallecito Union School District
Local Education Agency Organization Structure

June 30, 2021
Federal Financial Pass-Through
Assistance Entity
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Listing/Federal  Identifying Federal
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title CFDA Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Education
Passed Through California Department of Education (CDE)
COVID-19 Elementary and Secondary School
Emergency Relief (ESSER) Fund - ESSER | 84.425D 15536 $ 233,902
COVID-19 Governor's Emergency Education
Relief Fund (GEER) - Learning Loss Mitigation 84.425C 15517 36,341
Subtotal 270,243
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 14329 252,437
Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants 84.367 14341 13,357
Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program 84.424 15396 21,621
Total U.S. Department of Education 557,658
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Direct grant
Forest Service Schools and Roads Cluster
Schools and Roads - Grants to Counties 10.665 10044 4,230
Passed Through California Department of Education (CDE)
Child Nutrition Cluster
National School Lunch Program 10.555 13391 153,523
Total Child Nutrition Cluster 153,523
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 157,753
U.S. Department of Treasury
Passed Through California Department of Education (CDE)
COVID-19 Coronavirus Relief Fund
Learning Loss Mitigation 21.019 25516 274,653
Total U.S. Department of Treasury 274,653
Total Federal Financial Assistance $ 990,064

See Notes to Supplementary Information 57



Vallecito Union School District
Local Education Agency Organization Structure
June 30, 2021

Organization

The Vallecito Union School District was established in 1974. The District operates two elementary schools and
one middle schools. There were no boundary changes during the year.

Governing Board

Member Office
Mark Dyken President
Tom Pratt Clerk
Susan Singleton Member

Administration
Name
Tom Hoskins
Gretchen McReynolds
Ray Fansel
Josh O'Geen

Scott Nicotero

See Notes to Supplementary Information

Term Expires
December, 2022
December, 2022

December, 2022

Title

Superintendent

Chief Business Official
Principal

Principal

Principal

58

n



Vallecito Union School District
Schedule of Instructional Time
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Number of Actual Days Number of
Traditional Multitrack Days Credited Total Days
Grade Level Calendar Calendar Form J-13A* Offered Status
Kindergarten 180 N/A - 180 Complied
Grade 1 180 N/A - 180 Complied
Grade 2 180 N/A - 180 Complied
Grade 3 180 N/A - 180 Complied
Grade 4 180 N/A - 180 Complied
Grade 5 180 N/A - 180 Complied
Grade 6 180 N/A - 180 Complied
Grade 7 180 N/A - 180 Complied
Grade 8 180 N/A - 180 Complied

See Notes to Supplementary Information

59

12



€L

Vallecito Union School District
Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2021
Special Reserve Special Reserve
Deferred Fund for Other Fund for Bond Interest Non-Major
General Maintenance  Than Capital Postemployment Building and Redepmtion Governmenta
Fund Fund Outlay Projects Benefits Fund Fund Funds
Fund Balance
Balance, June 30, 2021,
Unaudited Actuals $ 3,338,244 S 61,680 S 136,504 S 793,442 $ 1,072,432 $ 1,714,589 S 430,287
Fair market value adjustments’ (119,617) (17) {1,706} (9,913) (188,747} (16,919) 1,879
Combine into General Fund for
presentation purpose 2 979,990 {61,663) (134,798} (783,529) - - -
ASB Cash due to GASB 84 - - - - - - 142,264
Balance, June 30, 2021,
Audited Financial Statements S 4,198,617 S -5 - S - S 883,685 S 1,697,670 S 574,430

! Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 31 requires school districts to report their investments at fair value on the balance sheet.

2These two funds do not meet the General Accepted Accounting Principle (GAAP) definition of special revenue funds. They function effectively as extensions of
the General Fund. For presentation in the audited financial statements, these funds should be combined with the General Fund to be complied to GAAP.

See Notes to Supplementary Information 60



Vallecito Union School District
Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis

Year Ended June 30, 2021
Budget
20221 2021 2020 2019

General Fund 3

Revenues S 9,887,056 S 9,162,734 $ 8,160,662 $ 8,320,691

Total Revenues
and Other Sources 9,887,056 9,162,734 8,160,662 8,320,691
Expenditures 10,153,789 8,478,417 8,083,594 8,186,830
Other uses and transfers out 111,312 115,000 55,000 35,000
Total Expenditures
and Other Uses 10,265,101 8,593,417 8,138,594 8,221,830

Increase/(Decrease)

in Fund Balance (378,045) 569,317 22,068 98,861
Ending Fund Balance S 3,820,572 S 4,198,617 S 3,629,300 S 3,607,232
Available Reserves * $ 2477450 $ 2,855,495 S 2571098 S 2,512,385
Available Reserves as a

Percentage of Total Outgo 24.13% 33.23% 31.59% 30.56%
Long-Term Liabilities S 24,184,149 S 25,466,662 S 23,201,340 S 23,169,081
K-12 Average Daily

Attendance at P-2 563 554 554 544

The General Fund balance has increased by $591,385 over the past two years. The fiscal year 2021-2020 budget
projects a decrease of $378,045 (9.00%). For a District this size, the state recommends available reserves of 4%
of total general fund expenditures, transfers out and other uses (total outgo).

The District has incurred operating surpluses in all of the past three years, but anticipates incurring an operating
deficit during the 2021-2021 fiscal year. Total long-term liabilities have increased by $2,297,581 over the past
two years.

Average daily attendance has decreased by 10 over the past two years. An increase of 9 to ADA is anticipated
during fiscal year 2021-2021.

1 Budget 2021 is included for analytical purposes only and has not been subjected to audit.

2 Available reserves consist of all unassigned fund balances including all amounts reserved for economic uncertainties contained with
the General Fund and the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects.

See Notes to Supplementary Information 61



Vallecito Union School District
Combining Balance Sheet — Non-Major Governmental Funds

June 30, 2021
Total
Student Capital Special Reserve  Non-Major
Activity Cafeteria Facilities  Fund for Capital Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Outlay Projects Funds
Assets
Deposits and investments $ 142,264 S 41,861 $ 178,477 $ 207,116 S 569,718
Receivables - 14,076 - - 14,076
Total assets $ 142,264 S 55937 $§ 178,477 $ 207,116 S 583,794
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable S - S 8,702 $ 662 § - S 9,364
Total liabilities - 8,702 662 - 9,364
Fund Balances
Restricted 142,264 47,235 177,815 - 367,314
Assigned - - - 207,116 207,116
Total fund balances 142,264 47,235 177,815 207,116 574,430

Total liabilities
and fund balances $ 142,264 $ 55,937 $ 178,477 $§ 207,116 S 583,794

See Notes to Supplementary Information 62



Vallecito Union School District
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditure, and Changes in Fund Balances — Non-Major Governmental

Funds
June 30, 2021
Total
Student Capital Special Reserve  Non-Major
Activity Cafeteria Facilities  Fund for Capital Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Outlay Projects Funds
Revenues

Federal sources S - § 153523 - S - § 153,523

Other state sources - 10,877 - - 10,877

Other local sources 128,349 38,606 202,742 122,064 491,761

Total revenues 128,349 203,006 202,742 122,064 656,161
Expenditures
Current
Pupil services
Food services - 282,278 - - 282,278
Plant services - - 66,407 1,936 68,343
Ancillary services 87,070 - - - 87,070
Capital Outlay - - 1,080 1,080
Total expenditures 87,070 282,278 66,407 3,016 438,771
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures 41,279 (79,272) 136,335 119,048 217,390
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in - 85,000 - 30,000 115,000
Net Change in Fund Balances 41,279 5,728 136,335 149,048 332,390
Fund Balance - Beginning, restated 100,985 41,507 41,480 58,068 242,040
Fund Balance - Ending S 142,264 S 47,235 177,815 $§ 207,116 S 574,430

See Notes to Supplementary Information

63

76



Vallecito Union School District
Note to Supplementary Information
June 30, 2021

Note 1- Purpose of Schedules

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA)

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards {the schedule) includes the federal award activity
of the Vallecito Union School District (the District) under programs of the federal government for the year ended
June 30, 2021. The information is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the
Vallecito Union School District, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in fund
balance of Bret Harte Union High School District.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported in the schedule are reported on the (identify the basis of accounting) basis of accounting.
When applicable, such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. No federal
financial assistance has been provided to a subrecipient.

Indirect Cost Rate
The District has not elected to use the ten percent de minimis cost rate.

Local Education Agency Organization Structure

This schedule provides information about the District's boundaries and schools operated, members of the
governing board, and members of the administration.

Schedule of Instructional Time

This schedule presents information on the number of instructional days offered by the District and whether the
District complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections 43504.

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balance of all funds reported on the
Unaudited Actual Financial Report to the audited financial statements.

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis
This schedule discloses the District’s financial trends by displaying past years' data along with current year

budget information. These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the District's ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

64

77



Vallecito Union School District
Note to Supplementary Information
June 30, 2021

Non-Major Governmental Funds - Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances

The Non-Major Governmental Funds Combining Balance Sheet and Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances is included to provide information regarding the individual funds
that have been included in the Non-Major Governmental Funds column on the Governmental Funds Balance
Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.

65

78



%}} Independent Auditor’s Reports
June 30, 2021

Vallecito Union School District

eidebuilly.com

79



This page intentional left blank.



P
EideBailly.
Ne—

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards

Governing Board
Vallecito Union School District
Avery, California

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Vallecito Union Schoo!
District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise Vallecito Union School District’s basic financial statements and have issued
our report thereon dated February 17, 2022.

Emphasis of Matter — Change in Accounting Principle
As discussed in Notes 1 and 13 to the financial statements, Vallecito Union School District has adopted
the provisions of GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, which has resulted in a restatement of the

net position (deficit) and fund balance as of July 1, 2020. Our opinions are not modified with respect to
this matter.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Vallecito Union School
District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Vallecito
Union School District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of Vallecito Union School District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com

4040 Campbell Avo,, Ste. 200 | Menlo Park, CA 94025-1053 | T650.522.3400 | F 650.645.7393 | EOE

66

81



Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Vallecito Union School District’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have
a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion, The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal contro! and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

@quﬂ

Menlo Park, California
February 17, 2022

67

82



B3>
2

EideBailly.
—

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control over
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

Governing Board
Vallecito Union School District
Avery, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Vallecito Union School District’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect
on each of Vallecito Union School District’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.
Vallecito Union School District’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Vallecito Union School District’s
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about Vallecito Union School District’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination Vallecito Union School
District’s compliance.

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
4040 Campboll Ave,, Sto. 200 | Menlo Park, CA 94025-1053 | T650.522.3400 | F 650.645.7393 | EOE

68

83



Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Vallecito Union School District’s complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021,

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Vallecito Union School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Vallecito Union School District’s
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Vallecito Union
School District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is
less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

éﬂﬁi@zuﬂ

Menlo Park, California
February 17, 2022

69

84



B>
ﬁ

EideBailly.
——

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report on State Compliance

Governing Board
Vallecito Union School District
Avery, California

Report on State Compliance

We have audited Vallecito Union School District’s (the District) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the 2020-2021 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and

State Compliance Reporting, applicable to the state laws and regulations listed in the table below for’
the year ended june 30, 2021.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the state laws and regulations as identified in the table
below.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the District’s compliance ‘with state laws and regulations
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to below. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the audit requirements of the 2020-2021 Guide for Annual Audits of K-
12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the compliance
requirements listed below has occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about

the District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on state compliance. However,
our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance.

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebuilly.com 70
4040 Campbell Ave,, Ste, 200 | Menlo Park, CA 94025-1053 | T650.522,3400 | F 650.645.7393 | EOE

85



Compliance Requirements Tested

In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to
determine the District’'s compliance with laws and regulations applicable to the following items:

LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCIES OTHER THAN CHARTER SCHOOLS

Attendance and Distance Learning

Teacher Certification and Misassignments
Kindergarten Continuance

Instructional Time

Instructional Materials

Ratios of Administrative Employees to Teachers
Classroom Teacher Salaries

Early Retirement Incentive

Gann Limit Calculation

School Accountability Report Card

K-3 Grade Span Adjustment

Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction
Comprehensive School Safety Plan

District of Choice

SCHOOL DISTRICTS, COUNTY OFFICES OF EDUCATION, AND CHARTER
SCHOOLS

California Clean Energy Jobs Act

Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts
Independent Study - Course Based

CHARTER SCHOOLS

Attendance

Mode of Instruction

Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/lndependent Study for Charter Schools
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction

Charter School Facility Grant Program

Procedures
Performed

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
No, see below
Yes
Yes
Yes
No, see below
Yes
No, see below

Yes
Yes
Yes
No, see below

No, see below
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below

71

86



Early Retirement Incentive

The District did not have any employees retire under the CalSTRS Early Retirement Incentive program;
therefore, testing was not required.

Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction

We did not perform Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction procedures because the
program is not offered by the District.

District of Choice
We did not perform District of Choice procedures because the program is not offered by the District.

Independent Study - Course Based
The District does not offer an Independent Study - Course Based program; therefore, we did not
perform any procedures related to the Independent Study - Course Based Program.

Charter Schools

The District does not operate any Charter Schools; therefore, we did not perform procedures for Charter
School Programs.

Unmadified Opinion
In our opinion, Vallecito Union School District complied, in all material respects, with the laws and
regulations of the state programs referred to above for the year ended June 30, 2021.

The purpose of this report on state compliance is solely to describe the results of our testing based on
the requirements of the 2020-2021 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State
Compliance Reporting. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

@,&%447‘)

Menlo Park, California
February 17, 2022

72

87



Vallecito Union School District
Summary of Auditor’s Results
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued

Internal control over financial reporting
Material weaknesses identified
Significant deficiencies identified not

considered to be material weaknesses

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major program
Material weaknesses identified
Significant deficiencies identified not

considered to be material weaknesses

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Uniform Guidance 2 CFR 200.516(a)

Identification of major programs

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

COVID-19 Coronavirus Relief Fund
COVID-19 Elementary and Secondary School
COVID-19 Governor's Emergency Education

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A
and type B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

State Compliance

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for programs

Unmodified

No
None Reported

No

No

None Reported

Unmodified

No

Federal Financial Assistance Listing/
Federal CFDA Number

21.019
84.425D
84.425C

$750,000

No

Unmodified

73

88



Vallecito Union School District
Financial Statement Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2021

None reported.

74

89



Vallecito Union School District
State Awards Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2021

None reported.

75

90



Vallecito Union School District
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2021

The following finding represents instances of noncompliance and questioned costs relating to compliance with
state laws and regulations. The findings have been coded as follows:

Five Digit Code AB 3627 Finding Type
40000 State Compliance

2020-001 Code 40000

Criteria or Specific Requirements

In accordance with Education Code section 46207 and 46208, a district equals or exceeds its local control
funding formula target, shall offer

1. 180 days or more days of instruction per school year.

2. ataminimum, the following number of minutes of instruction: (1) To pupils in kindergarten, 36,000
minutes; (2) To pupils in grades 1 to 3, inclusive, 50,400 minutes; (3) To pupils in grades 4 to 8, inclusive,
54,000 minutes; (4) To pupils in grades 9 to 12, inclusive, 64,800 minutes.

Condition

The District offered 176 instructional days during the school year, resulting four days short of meeting the 180-
day requirement, and 645 minutes short of meeting 54,000-minutes for the 4" and 5th grades.

Questioned Costs
$122,213

Context
Instruction minutes provided by 4th grade and 5th grade during the school year.

Effect
The District might lose its funding.

Cause
During the year, the District has four days of emergency close-down due to power outage. The District has
completed its application of Request for Allowance of Attendance Due to Emergency Conditions (J-13A), and

approved by its oversight county, Calaveras County Office of Education (CCOE). For reason unknown, the CCOE
forgot to submit the application on behalf of the District.

Repeat Finding: No
Recommendation
The District shall submit the application to California Department of Education (CDE) as soon as

possible.

Current Status
Resolved

76

91



} Financial and Performance Audits
= Building Fund (2020 Measure 1)

June 30, 2021
Vallecito Union School District

/E@>><a§
EideBailly.
eidebailly.com \""aa-_-s/

92



Vallecito Union School District
Building Fund (2020 Measure I)

Table of Contents
June 30, 2021
Financial Audit

INAEPENUENT AUITOT'S REPOIM ...cviveeeeeeeeieeeeecaeeeeetet et st e saseastestesesseseesesssasensessaesstssssseaseesessesesneseessansesessssesnene 1

Financial Statements
BAlANCE SNEEL.......ooeicreierirticiec ittt sress b ose e s e b ssste s bessteseneesseanessssensessnesaesessesanesasensenestesanenneesensannesessarannes 3
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in FUNd Balance...........cceuvveveerecreeeieeesreererensienesssssesssensenens 4
INOLES tO FINANCIAl STALEIMENTS .......eicieciciecceeiccreere ettt et e e et e e s stesaoneestssereseessassseesanesatesaesassenbessnsentes 5

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
SEANAAIAS c....oveeeereeirincriinirieneeeeeie e essees st rsssssesstsssssassstsisstesetsssstesassassestessssensessastssssstesessesssseeseessnssessessensasensessetonsns 9

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

SUMMArY OF AUCILOI'S REPOIT .....vevriirirereinrirecseseresieetereeessesssstssessessssasssssstestessassrsessensanssssssessssensansestessessasennes 11

FINANCial StAteMENT FINAINES c..ccvevereviereeiesieereeeeerertestetes e sr b ess et s s ssses e estsessesesassnssnssessastessssberseestensessnsaens 12
Performance Audit
Independent Auditor's REPOIt ON PerfOrManCe......vicreriiiiniierorieine e berberseresssassssesssbessetssssessbsebesssstsesensessises 13
AULNOTIEY TOT ISSUBNCE.....vieteeiiriiriereireire s cteetete et sresse st estere s e srasssessessentesesssessessasssessesaesseessessensesssrsessnssessenssensenes 14
PUIPOSE OFf ISSUANCE .....uevererrienirtieicese s s e eree et e sessessrassssseesssssessabossesessessesessessesassensassesessssinserensersensesasansesses 14
AULROTILY fOU TRE AUt .....vcovvereervivtriireiecieeiintisvereesieeestesressesserasessesssestessessersossorsesssssasssssssssenseessessertsssnesasssessesssesseses 14
OBJECHIVES OF TRE AUt c.....veeeveieieeeieeetee e tee st eess st s s se e see s e e sae b e aesse s essssaeesssrseabensesteshensssssestensasssesssaneensentans 15
SCOPE OF LR AUGIL ....veveveeeeierietenereece st st eressesssbeste et b esssbassssnseessssresessessensesbessassaresssssasesbossasserssasnsessasansessentans 15
IMEEROAOIOQY ...ttt ertete e st e e sae e st se st e st s stas st e e e s e e ss et s e s sens st e satessse s teeneesasaantaeneeeasebaeenssentensensssase 15
CONCIUSION ...ocvveventernierentinersersseeseeses e ssees et e seraesassseestastantassessasseestertessesassssassasesnsessessssensassssnsesssssseseaseassesnsessensares 16

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Schedule of Findings and QUESTIONEA COSES ........cccveeerreeiiiieirtieeie e ceeereeseeseeecteesaeeseseeesesesssesntessassssassssssessnons 17

93



gp Financial Audit
Building Fund (2020 Measure |)
June 30, 2021

Vallecito Union School District

eidebailly.com

94



/W>>\
EideBailly.
—

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor's Report

Governing Board and

Citizens’ Oversight Committee
Vallecito School District

Avery, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Vallecito Union School District's (the
“District”), Building Fund (2020 Measure 1) (the “Fund”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and
the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting principles used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com

4040 Compboll Ave,, Ste. 200 | Menlo Park, CA 94025-1053 | T650.522.3400 | F 650.645.7393 | EOE

95



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Building Fund (2020 Measure I} of Vallecito Union School District as of June 30,
2021, and the changes in financial position for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the Building Fund specific to 2020 Measure | are
intended to present the financial position and the changes in financial position attributable to the
transactions of that Fund. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the
District as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in financial position for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.

Management has omitted the management, discussion, and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 17,
2022, on our consideration of the Fund's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

é@,&fuzguf

Menlo Park, California
February 17, 2022

96



Vallecito Union School District
Building Fund {2020 Measure |)
Balance Sheet

June 30, 2021
Assets
Deposits and investments S 883,685
Total assets $ 883,685
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilites S -
Fund Balance
Restricted for capital projects 883,685
Total liabilities and fund equity $ 883,685
See Notes to Financial Statements 3

97



Vallecito Union School District
Building Fund (2020 Measure 1)
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Year Ended June 30, 2021
Revenues
interest income S 16,464
Fair market value adjustment (188,747)
Total Revenues and Other Sources (172,283)
Expenditures
Contracted services 1,578,590
Debt service - issuance costs 165,442
Total Expenditures 1,744,032
Deficiency of Revenues Over Expenditures (1,916,315)
Other Financing Sources
Proceeds from sale of bonds 2,800,000
Net Change in Fund Balance 883,685
Fund Balance - Beginning -
Fund Balance - Ending S 883,685
See Notes to Financial Statements 4

98



Vallecito Union School District
2020 Measure | Fund

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

Note1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Vallecito Union School District's (the District) Building Fund (2020 Measure 1)
conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(AICPA).

Financial Reporting Entity .

The financial statements include only the Building Fund of the Vallecito Union School District used to account for
2018 Measure K projects. This Fund was established to account for the expenditures of general obligation
bonds issued under 2020 Measure |I. These financial statements are not intended to present fairly the financial

position and results of operations of the District in compliance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Fund Accounting

The operations of the Building Fund are accounted for in a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise
its assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenues, and expenditures. Resources are allocated to and accounted for in

the fund based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are
controlled.

Basis of Accounting

The Building Fund is accounted for using a flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities
generally are inciuded on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balance reports on the sources (revenues and other financing sources) and uses (expenditures and other
financing uses) of current financial resources.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America for all governmental funds. The District's governing board adopts an operating budget no
later than July 1 in accordance with State law. A public hearing must be conducted to receive comments prior to
adoption. The District's governing board satisfied these requirements. The Board revises this budget during the
year to give consideration to unanticipated revenue and expenditures primarily resulting from events unknown
at the time of budget adoption. The District employs budget control by minor object and by individual
appropriation accounts. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by major object account.

99



Vallecito Union School District
2020 Measure | Fund

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

Encumbrances

The District utilizes an encumbrance accounting system under which purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation. Encumbrances are liquidated when the commitments are paid, and all outstanding
encumbrances lapse at June 30.

Fund Balance — Building Fund (2020 Measure |)
As of June 30, 2021, the fund balance is classified as follows:

Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions or

enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or
the laws or regulations of other governments.

Spending Order Policy

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is
available, the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for
which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the District considers amounts to have
been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless
the governing board has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Note 2 - Investments
Policies and Practices

The District is authorized under California Government Code to make direct investments in local agency bonds,
notes, or warrants within the State: U.S. Treasury instrument; registered State warrants or treasury notes:
securities of the U.S. Government, or its agencies; bankers acceptances; commercial paper; certificates of
deposit placed with commercial banks and/or savings and loan companies; repurchase or reverse repurchase
agreement; medium term corporate notes; shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management

companies, certificates of participation, obligations with first priority security, and collateralized mortgage
obligations.

100



Vallecito Union School District
2020 Measure | Fund

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

Investment in County Treasury

The District is considered to be an involuntary participant in an external investment pool as the District is
required to deposit all receipts and collections of monies with their County Treasurer (Education Code Section
41001). The fair value of the District's investment in the pool is reported in the accounting financial statement at
amounts based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fairly value provided by the County Treasurer for the
entire portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based
on the accounting records maintained by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on the amortized cost basis.

General Authorizations

Limitations as they relate to interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk are indicated in the
schedules below:

Maximum Maximum Maximum
Authorized Remaining Percentage Investment
Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None
Registered State Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None
Banker's Acceptance 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% of base None
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% None
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None
Joint Powers Authority Pools N/A None None

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value is to
changes in market interest rates. The District manages its exposure to interest rate risk by depositing
substantially all of its funds in the County Treasury Pool. The weighted average maturity of the Calaveras County
Pool is 449 days.

101



Vallecito Union School District
2020 Measure | Fund

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

Note 3 - Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation

The District is not currently a party to any legal proceedings related to the Building Fund (2020 Measure |) as of
June 30, 2021.

102



B2

Independent Auditor's Report
June 30, 2021

Vallecito Union School District

eidebaifly.com

103



/93’>>q\
EideBailly.
——

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Governing Board and

Citizens’ Oversight Committee
Vallecito Union School District
Avery, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Vallecito Union
School District (the “District”) Building Fund (2020 Measure 1) as of and for the year ended June 30,

2021, and the related notes of the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
February 17, 2022.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the Building Fund specific to 2020 Measure | are
intended to present the financial position and the changes in financial position attributable to the
transactions of that Fund. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the
District as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in financial position for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.

Management has omitted the management, discussion, and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

Whot inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com

4040 Campboall Ave., St0. 200 | Monlo Park, CA 94025-1053 | T650.522.3400 | F 650.645.7393 | EOE

104



A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s Building Fund
(2020 Measure 1) financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s Building Fund (2020 Measure |) financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not
an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

é“'/&%lzjﬂ

Menlo Park, California
February 17, 2022

10

105



Vallecito Union School District

Building Fund (2020 Measure |)
Summary of Auditor’s Report

June 30, 2021
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditor’s report issued on whether the financial statements
audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified No
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses None Reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No
11

106



Vallecito Union School District
Building Fund (2020 Measure {)
Financial Statement Findings

June 30, 2021

None reported.

12

107



ﬁt Performance Audit
Building Fund (2020 Measure I}
June 30, 2021

Vallecito Union School District

eidebailly.com

108



/[9>>\
EideBailly.
—

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS
Independent Auditor's Report on Performance

Governing Board and

Citizens’ Oversight Committee
Vallecito Union School District
Avery, California

We were engaged to conduct a performance audit of the Vallecito Union School District (the District) Building
Fund (2020 Measure 1) for the year ended June 30, 2021.

We conducted this performance audit in accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence to

provide a reasonable basis for our findings and conclusions based on our audit objectives. We believe that the
evidence obtained provides a reasonable basis for our findings and conclusions based on our audit objectives.

Our audit was limited to the objectives listed within the report which includes determining the District’s
compliance with the performance requirements as referred to in Proposition 39 and outlined in Article XillA,
Section 1(b)(3)(C) of the California Constitution and Appendix A contained in the 2020-2021 Guide for Annual
Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting issued by the California Education Audit
Appeals Panel. Management is responsible for the District’s compliance with those requirements.

In planning and performing our performance audit, we obtained an understanding of the District’s internal
control in order to determine if the internal controls were adequate to help ensure the District’s compliance
with the requirements of Proposition 39 and outlined in Article XIlIA, Section 1(b){3)(C) of the California
Constitution, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Had we
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been
reported to you.

The results of our tests indicated that the District expended Building Fund (2020 Measure 1) funds only for the
specific projects approved by the voters, in accordance with Proposition 39 and outlined in Article XIlIA,
Section 1(b){3}(C} of the California Constitution.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the District’s governing board, management and
Citizens’ Oversight Committee, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than this
specified party.

@MAL%

Menlo Park, California
February 17, 2022

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com 13

4040 Campbell Ave,, Sto. 200 | Meonlo Park, CA 94025-1053 | T650.522.3400 | F 650.645.7393 | EOE

109



Vallecito Union School District
Building Fund (2020 Measure |)
June 30, 2021

Authority for Issuance

The general obligation bonds associated with 2020 Measure | were issued pursuant to the Constitution and laws
of the State of California (the State), including the provisions of Chapters 1 and 1.5 of Part 10 of the California
Education Code, and other applicable provisions of law. The Bonds are authorized to be issued by a resolution
adopted by the Board of Supervisors of the County on November 3, 2020 (the "Resolution"), at the request of
the Governing Board of the District by its resolution adopted on June 24, 2020.

The District received authorization at an election held on November 3, 2020, to issue bonds of the District in an
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $2,800,000 to finance specific construction and renovation projects
approved by eligible voters within the District. The Measure required approval by 55% majority votes cast by
eligible voters within the District (the 2020 Authorization).

Purpose of Issuance

The net proceeds of the Bonds and any other series of general obligation bonds issued under the Authorization
will be used for the purposes specified in 2020 Measure | submitted at the Election, which is to renovate,
construct, equip, repair and improve classrooms and school facilities, including deteriorating roofs, heating and
air conditioning systems, and construct a new multi-purpose room.

Authority for the Audit

On November 7, 2000, California voters approved Proposition 39, the Smaller Classes, Safer Schools and
Financial Accountability Act. Proposition 39 amended portions of the California Constitution to provide for the
issuance of general obligation bonds by school districts, community college districts, or county offices of
education, "for the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or replacement of school facilities, including the
furnishing and equipping of school facilities, or the acquisition or lease of rental property for school facilities",
upon approval by 55 percent of the electorate. In addition to reducing the approval threshold from two-thirds
to 55 percent, Proposition 39 and the enacting legislation (AB 1908 and AB 2659) requires the following
accountability measures as codified in Education Code Sections 15278-15282:

1. Regquires that the proceeds from the sale of the bonds be used only for the purposes specified in Article
XA, Section 1({b)(3)(C) of the California Constitution, and not for any other purpose, including teacher
and administrator salaries and other school operating expenses.

2. The school district must list the specific school facilities projects to be funded in the ballot measure, and
must certify that the governing board has evaluated safety, class size reduction and information
technology needs in developing the project list.

3. Requires the school district to appoint a citizens’ oversight committee.
4. Requires the school district to conduct an annual independent financial audit and performance audit in

accordance with the Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States of the bond proceeds until all of the proceeds have been expended.

14

110



Vallecito Union School District
Building Fund (2020 Measure 1)
June 30, 2021

5. Requires the school district to conduct an annual independent performance audit to ensure that the
funds have been expended only on the specific projects listed.

Objectives of the Audit

1. Determine whether expenditures charged to the Fund have been made in accordance with the bond
project list approved by the voters through the approval of 2020 Measure I.

2. Determine whether salary transactions, charged to the Building Fund were in support of 2020
Measure | and not for District general administration or operations.

Scope of the Audit

The scope of our performance audit covered the period of July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021. The population of
expenditures tested included all object and project codes associated with the Measure. The propriety of
expenditures for capital projects and maintenance projects funded through other State or local funding sources,
other than proceeds of the bonds, were not included within the scope of the audit. Expenditures incurred
subsequent to June 30, 2021, were not reviewed or included within the scope of our audit or in this report.

Methodology

We obtained the general ledger and the project expenditure reports prepared by the District for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2021, for the Fund. Within the fiscal year audited, we obtained the actual invoices and other
supporting documentation for a sample of expenditures to ensure compliance with the requirements of Article

XA, Section 1{b)(3)(C) of the California Constitution and the Measure as to the approved bond projects list.
We performed the following procedures:

1. Weidentified expenditures and projects charged to the general obligation bond proceeds by obtaining
the general ledger and project listing.

2. We selected a sample of expenditures using the following criteria:

a. We considered all expenditures recorded in all object codes, including transfers out.

b. We considered all expenditures recorded in all projects that were funded from July 1, 2020
through June 30, 2021 from 2020 Measure | bond proceeds.

c. We selected all expenditures that were individually significant expenditures. Individually
significant expenditures were identified as individual transactions (expenditures) that exceeded
approximately 5 percent of the total expenditures incurred.

d. For all items below the individually significant threshold identified in item 2c, judgmentally
selected expenditures based on risk assessment and consideration of coverage of all object

codes, including transfers out, and projects for period starting July 1, 2020 and ending June 30,
2021,

15

111



Vallecito Union School District
Building Fund (2020 Measure 1)
June 30, 2021

3. Our sample included transactions totaling $1,521,177 non-payroll expenditures. This represents 90
percent of the total expenditures of $1,744,032.

4. We reviewed the actual invoices and other supporting documentation to determine that:

a. Expenditures were supported by invoices with evidence of proper approval and documentation
of receipting goods or services.

b. Expenditures were supported by proper bid documentation, as applicable.

Expenditures were expended in accordance with voter-approved bond project list.

d. Bond proceeds were not used for salaries of school administrators or other operating expenses
of the District.

o

5. We determined that the District has met the compliance requirement of 2020 Measure | if the following
conditions were met:

a. Supporting documents for expenditures were aligned with the voter-approved bond project list.

b. Supporting documents for expenditures were not used for salaries of school administrators or
other operating expenses of the Districts.

¢. We verified that charges to the Fund were generally expended for the construction, renovation,
furnishing and equipping of District facilities constituting authorized bond projects.

Conclusion

The results of our tests indicated that, in all significant respects, Template Binders has properly accounted for
the expenditures held in the 2020 Measure | and that such expenditures were made for authorized Bond
projects.

16

112



Vallecito Union School District
Building Fund (2020 Measure |)

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2021

None reported.

17

113



i Financial and Performance Audits
B> Building Fund (2018 Measure E)
June 30, 2021

Vallecito Union School District

/>><§
EideBailly.
eidebailly.com W

114



Vallecito Union School District
Building Fund (2018 Measure E)

Table of Contents
June 30, 2021
Financial Audit

INAEPENAENT AUGILON'S REPOTE ....vevivereeeiieieiece et te ettt cereetssassessasseosessestessassassnseseosessensessssssnesessessonsessaseasenes 1

Financial Statements
BalaNCE SHEEL ...ttt et et esb et b st et e s b e s e st et e see st s st e bt oneseataesnaenaeane st eats bt enrenasanne 3
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in FUNd Balance..............cooeeveveeuireieenecieieeecr s eseeane 4
NOLES 1O FINANCIA] STAEEMENTS .....ceeveeecrteeeeereeter et teesteesseteeesaessessessesessssasassesssstossnsessessasssessstessessessesssssessstanns 5

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
SEANAAIUS .........eoeirceeeeneseeirrtrieiee s ste st s e ste st ssesasste st s sssbesasb s et st e sessansssenssseesesssesessenessessesseseastoseresasensesssensonssons 8

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

SUMMATY Of AUAILOI'S REPOTT ...cuiuiuiriiririerciiiieeeiesesttsesieirsas et e e s sssesese e s seeseressaenesssnssenessssrensanssssensrsasnrres 10

Financial Statement FINAINGS ..ottt s e e sese s esssassess s e s e e s sssssssssesesseesesensenens 11
Performance Audit
Independent AUItor's REPOrt ON PErfOrMANCE .......oeeeeeiverireererrriereee s rensessssseseseosessssssssassossonsasosssssnersaes 12
AULROTILY O ISSUBNCE.....cvetieiitieerereeieeeeceee ettt eaeot st e st sse s s e s tessestesesseseeesessaenesneesessensosesssnsenssnssseseanens 13
PUTPOSE OF ISSUBNCE ....cecnrvieeiireeieriirrresietsiete e st esseesesteesessesessesestessasorsasssssessesesssansasessnsssssessessssssstensensosssessosensaes 13
AULROTILY JOr BRE AUCIL .........conevtrrerecteirtcieesese et sses ot eeniessssssessssssssbssebesseseansssssbsssassasstsboneansasassssssenssssnesrasoss 13
ODBJECEIVES Of tRE AUTIL ............convevteeeeirreitreeee s ses vt issesaebesbesess et ssessessarenssesssssasansasnsotassanessasssensesestasesessesonn 14
SCOPE Of ERE AUCL ..........coeeereeereeeseesee et e st ee e st e s sss st er s be st be s e s s sesbe s b s asatstsassbens s enss st eneessstrssnensoroscs 14
MELROOIOGY ..........ooneoriiriieriieirieetiser sttt be st ste bt s assaseseesesesessessentensestabenssaesrsssentonsorsresnrensensansassasans 14
CONCIUSION ..ottt ettt e sa et se et eb et et sta e et e sa e s s saebese e shess st ontorsnssnraesnatesssssssssatatensosnsosesatensans 15

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs...........cccu.e..... ettt ettt et er e ee e et e 16

115



BB Einancial Audit

Buildivng Fund (2018 Measure E)
June 30, 2021

Vallecito Union School District

eidebailly.com

116



B>,
ﬂ

EideBailly.
——

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

independent Auditor's Report

Governing Board and

Citizens’ Oversight Committee
Vallecito School District

Avery, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Vallecito Union School District's (the
“District”), Building Fund (2018 Measure E) (the “Fund”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and
the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting principles used and the reasonableness of

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

What inspires you, inspires us. } eidebailly.com

4040 Campbell Ava,, Ste. 200 | Menla Park, CA 94025-1053 | T650.522.3400 | F 650.645.7393 | EOE

117



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Building Fund (2018 Measure E) of Vallecito Union School District as of June 30,
2021, and the changes in financial position for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the Building Fund specific to 2018 Measure E are
intended to present the financial position and the changes in financial position attributable to the
transactions of that Fund. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the
District as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in financial positon for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.

Management has omitted the management, discussion, and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 17,
2022, on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

é’%ﬁw@xuﬂ

Menlo Park, California
February 17, 2022

118



Vallecito Union School District
Building Fund (2018 Measure E)
Balance Sheet

June 30, 2021
Assets S -
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilites $ -
Fund Balance -
Total liabilities and fund equity $ -
See Notes to Financial Statements 3

19



Vallecito Union School District
Building Fund {2018 Measure E)
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Revenues

Interest income S 51,313
Expenditures

Contracted services 7,250,416
Net Change in Fund Balance (7,199,103)
Fund Balance - Beginning 7,199,103
Fund Balance - Ending S -
See Notes to Financial Statements 4

120



Vallecito Union School District
2018 Measure E Fund

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

Note1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Vallecito Union School District's (the District) Building Fund (2018 Measure E)
conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(AICPA).

Financial Reporting Entity

The financial statements include only the Building Fund of the Vallecito Union School District used to account for
2018 Measure K projects. This Fund was established to account for the expenditures of general obligation
bonds issued under 2018 Measure E. These financial statements are not intended to present fairly the financial

position and results of operations of the District in compliance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Fund Accounting

The operations of the Building Fund are accounted for in a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise
its assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenues, and expenditures. Resources are allocated to and accounted for in

the fund based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are
controlled.

Basis of Accounting

The Building Fund is accounted for using a flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities
generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balance reports on the sources (revenues and other financing sources) and uses (expenditures and other
financing uses) of current financial resources.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America for all governmental funds. The District's governing board adopts an operating budget no
later than July 1 in accordance with State law. A public hearing must be conducted to receive comments prior to
adoption. The District's governing board satisfied these requirements. The Board revises this budget during the
year to give consideration to unanticipated revenue and expenditures primarily resulting from events unknown
at the time of budget adoption. The District employs budget control by minor object and by individual
appropriation accounts. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by major object account.

121



Vallecito Union School District
2018 Measure E Fund

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

Encumbrances

The District utilizes an encumbrance accounting system under which purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation. Encumbrances are liquidated when the commitments are paid, and all outstanding
encumbrances lapse at June 30.

Fund Balance — Building Fund (2018 Measure E)
As of June 30, 2021, the fund balance is classified as follows:

Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or
the laws or regulations of other governments.

Spending Order Policy

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is
available, the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for
which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the District considers amounts to have
been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless
the governing board has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

122



Vallecito Union School District
2018 Measure E Fund

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

Note 2- Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation

The District is not currently a party to any legal proceedings related to the Building Fund (2018 Measure E) as of
June 30, 2021.

123



B

Independent Auditor's Report
June 30, 2021

Vallecito Union School District

eidebailly.com

124



/ﬁ>>§
EideBailly.
N—"

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Governing Board and

Citizens’ Oversight Committee
Vallecito Union School District
Avery, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Vallecito Union
School District {the “District”) Building Fund (2018 Measure E) as of and for the year ended June 30,

2021, and the related notes of the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
February 17, 2022.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the Building Fund specific to 2018 Measure E are
intended to present the financial position and the changes in financial position attributable to the
transactions of that Fund. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the
District as of June 30, 2021, and the results of its operations for the year then ended in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified
with respect to this matter.

Management has omitted the management, discussion, and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebuilly.com

4040 Campbell Ave,, Sto. 200 | Menlo Park, CA 94025-1053 | T650.522.3400 | F 650.645.7393 | EOE

125



A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s Building Fund
(2018 Measure E) financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s Building Fund (2018 Measure E) financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not
an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing

Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose,

@Mu%’

Menlo Park, California
February 17, 2022

126



Vallecito Union School District

Building Fund (2018 Measure E)
Summary of Auditor’s Report

June 30, 2021
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditor’s report issued on whether the financial statements
audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified No
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses None Reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No
10

127



Vallecito Union School District
Building Fund (2018 Measure E)
Financial Statement Findings

June 30, 2021

None reported.

11

128



W}} Performance Audit

Building Fund (2018 Measure E)
June 30, 2021

Vallecito Union School District

eidebailly.com

129



/B>>\
EideBailly.
—

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS
Independent Auditor's Report on Performance

Governing Board and

Citizens’ Oversight Committee
Vallecito Union School District
Avery, California

We were engaged to conduct a performance audit of the Vallecito Union School District (the District) Building
Fund (2018 Measure E) for the year ended June 30, 2021.

We conducted this performance audit in accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence to

provide a reasonable basis for our findings and conclusions based on our audit objectives. We believe that the
evidence obtained provides a reasonable basis for our findings and conclusions based on our audit objectives.

Our audit was limited to the objectives listed within the report which includes determining the District’s
compliance with the performance requirements as referred to in Proposition 39 and outlined in Article XIIIA,
Section 1{b)(3)}(C) of the California Constitution and Appendix A contained in the 2020-2021 Guide for Annual
Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting issued by the California Education Audit
Appeals Panel. Management is responsible for the District’s compliance with those requirements.

In planning and performing our performance audit, we obtained an understanding of the District’s internal
control in order to determine if the internal controls were adequate to help ensure the District’s compliance
with the requirements of Proposition 39 and outlined in Article XIlIA, Section 1(b)(3)(C) of the California
Constitution, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Had we
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been
reported to you.

The results of our tests indicated that the District expended Building Fund (2018 Measure E) funds only for the
specific projects approved by the voters, in accordance with Proposition 39 and outlined in Article XIlIA,
Section 1{b){3)(C} of the California Constitution.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the District’s governing board, management and
Citizens’ Oversight Committee, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than this
specified party.

@«Mu%’

Menlo Park, California
February 17, 2022

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidehuilly.com 12

4040 Campbell Ave., Sto. 200 | Menlo Park, CA 94025-1053 | T 650.522.3400 | F 650.645.7393 | EOE

130



Vallecito Union School District
Building Fund (2018 Measure E)
June 30, 2021

Authority for Issuance

The general obligation bonds associated with 2018 Measure E were issued pursuant to the Constitution and laws
of the State of California (the State), including the provisions of Chapters 1 and 1.5 of Part 10 of the California
Education Code, and other applicable provisions of law. The Bonds are authorized to be issued by a resolution
adopted by the Board of Supervisors of the County on June 6, 2019 (the "Resolution"), at the request of the
Governing Board of the District by its resolution adopted on May 8, 2019.

The District received authorization at an election held on November 6, 2018, to issue bonds of the District in an
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $11,000,000 to finance specific construction and renovation projects
approved by eligible voters within the District. The Measure required approval by 55% majority votes cast by
eligible voters within the District (the 2018 Authorization).

Purpose of Issuance

The net proceeds of the Bonds and any other series of general obligation bonds issued under the Authorization
will be used for the purposes specified in 2018 Measure E submitted at the Election, which is to renovate,
construct, equip, repair and improve classrooms and schooi facilities, including deteriorating roofs, heating and
air conditioning systems, and construct a new multi-purpose room.

Authority for the Audit

On November 7, 2000, California voters approved Proposition 39, the Smaller Classes, Safer Schools and
Financial Accountability Act. Proposition 39 amended portions of the California Constitution to provide for the
issuance of general obligation bonds by school districts, community college districts, or county offices of
education, “for the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or replacement of school facilities, including the
furnishing and equipping of school facilities, or the acquisition or lease of rental property for school facilities",
upon approval by 55 percent of the electorate. In addition to reducing the approval threshold from two-thirds
to 55 percent, Proposition 39 and the enacting legislation (AB 1908 and AB 2659) requires the following
accountability measures as codified in Education Code Sections 15278-15282:

1. Requires that the proceeds from the sale of the bonds be used only for the purposes specified in Article
XIlA, Section 1(b}(3){C) of the California Constitution, and not for any other purpose, including teacher
and administrator salaries and other school operating expenses.

2. The school district must list the specific school facilities projects to be funded in the ballot measure, and
must certify that the governing board has evaluated safety, class size reduction and information
technology needs in developing the project list.

3. Requires the school district to appoint a citizens’ oversight committee.
4. Requires the school district to conduct an annual independent financial audit and performance audit in

accordance with the Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States of the bond proceeds until all of the proceeds have been expended.

13

131



Vallecito Union School District
Building Fund (2018 Measure E)
June 30, 2021

5. Requires the school district to conduct an annual independent performance audit to ensure that the
funds have been expended only on the specific projects listed.

Objectives of the Audit

1. Determine whether expenditures charged to the Fund have been made in accordance with the bond
project list approved by the voters through the approval of 2018 Measure E.

2. Determine whether salary transactions, charged to the Building Fund were in support of 2018
Measure E and not for District general administration or operations.

Scope of the Audit

The scope of our performance audit covered the period of July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021. The population of
expenditures tested included all object and project codes associated with the Measure. The propriety of
expenditures for capital projects and maintenance projects funded through other State or local funding sources,
other than proceeds of the bonds, were not included within the scope of the audit. Expenditures incurred
subsequent to June 30, 2020, were not reviewed or included within the scope of our audit or in this report.

Methodology

We obtained the general ledger and the project expenditure reports prepared by the District for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2020, for the Fund. Within the fiscal year audited, we obtained the actual invoices and other
supporting documentation for a sample of expenditures to ensure compliance with the requirements of Article
XIllA, Section 1(b){3)(C) of the California Constitution and the Measure as to the approved bond projects list.
We performed the following procedures:

1. We identified expenditures and projects charged to the general obligation bond proceeds by obtaining
the general ledger and project listing.

2. We selected a sample of expenditures using the following criteria:

a. We considered all expenditures recorded in all object codes, including transfers out.

b. We considered all expenditures recorded in all projects that were funded from July 1, 2020
through June 30, 2021 from 2018 Measure E bond proceeds.

¢. We selected all expenditures that were individually significant expenditures. individually
significant expenditures were identified as individual transactions (expenditures) that exceeded
approximately 5 percent of the total expenditures incurred.

d. For all items below the individually significant threshold identified in item 2¢, judgmentally
selected expenditures based on risk assessment and consideration of coverage of all object

codes, including transfers out, and projects for period starting July 1, 2020 and ending June 30,
2021.

14

132



Vallecito Union School District
Building Fund (2018 Measure E)
June 30, 2021

3. Oursample included transactions totaling $6,740,525 non-payroll expenditures. This represents 93
percent of the total expenditures of $7,250,416.

4. We reviewed the actual invoices and other supporting documentation to determine that:

a. Expenditures were supported by invoices with evidence of proper approval and documentation
of receipting goods or services.

Expenditures were supported by proper bid documentation, as applicable.

Expenditures were expended in accordance with voter-approved bond project list.

d. Bond proceeds were not used for salaries of school administrators or other operating expenses
of the District.

0T

5. We determined that the District has met the compliance requirement of 2018 Measure E if the following
conditions were met:

a. Supporting documents for expenditures were aligned with the voter-approved bond project list.
b. Supporting documents for expenditures were not used for salaries of school administrators or
other operating expenses of the Districts.

c. We verified that charges to the Fund were generally expended for the construction, renovation,
furnishing and equipping of District facilities constituting authorized bond projects.

Conclusion

The results of our tests indicated that, in all significant respects, Vallecito Union School District has properly
accounted for the expenditures held in the 2018 Measure E and that such expenditures were made for
authorized Bond projects.

15

133



Vallecito Union School District

Building Fund (2018 Measure E)

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2021

None reported.

16

134



RECEIVED
FEB 0 7 2022

.
BY: i,

CANDIDATE INFORMATION SHEET
Vallecito Union School District

Please fill out and return this Candidate Information Sheet (2 pages), along with a brief letter of
introduction by February 7, 2022 to Cheryl Boyd, or leave at the Superintendent’s office.

Date: :2“"7 7‘0}&2
sllamley E0LC A

(Last Name) (First Name) (Initial)

Business Address: ™

Home Address:H ~~’ ML‘(“ - :4 ~-'~w e Ly Py
e d A v - ‘_‘ ¥ '
” L )

E-mail: ‘l’?..‘u}\ .{w N ‘(j 1“--4—( rw‘d =y

Occupation and Employer: _ ['TNO€) Y T, /7 YiNd (} ey )7 / §IU / '(

No. of Years Residing in District: ' 71 ¢/

'

Do you have children in § eDlstnct schools? Yes 3( No
If yes, what schools? /7 [Chaeson / A 1)74;

1. Do you have prior expenence servmg on a governing board, specifically a school district
board? Pl e list such prior experjence.
é Ry id Bedent
o\ € )(/)6* Nenc C

2. Have you worked on any school committees or partacnpated in any school activities

recently? Please list them. )\ . ) l
Sk /‘l(L.;C /,u\l SeN@

3. Describe any other community or business activities in which you have participated.
Descrlbe your role, whethe! your work was volunteer. emplo me Yrelated.
e e om Tt Jon el QT Bear Ualbcs
ki Comboantl. (et k1 ng OJGM foumi [vg O\ ’
SO ot" 4T («’le)f buced T i'n (}(’w Jo rfhu urp(»m AL ARS

4. Why do you want to be a member of the Vallecito Union School District Govemmg Board
(“Board”)? \ /
I Ceel 4 could pmulde some diversiiy
(Ora) ‘f AR 60 [\ ’\

135



Candidate Information Sheet — Board Vacancy
Page Two

5.

10.

LL(‘ o

XV%
/ ite o ,(‘) // (
What is the role of the Board in the fulfillment of that purpose?

The. me OQ \!L)V& /@rm 3 m»&ld ,{@ Jo (J‘&ULL

(OfOSI O A CTINCE (ﬂﬁfﬂf‘/dwde m/j and
A ML // addmi'nigd radiban,

How d(ées the Board’s role dnffer from th z; of the upenntendent?
i he

v /nl\“’ SN

0“1’\{& ilo A /u /’l(f)/ f
©47 107\
.@('LJ

AN ) C)

What should be the relationship between the Board members and the administration in the
handling of school concerns?

%&urci ﬁt@;f)f,d ¢/ f‘/ﬁ@aa[(* h(u)ﬁ CIQ( lue (cf»;}?/lfu»ia//%
"

O © ho-r € ¢ P \(
mmmnmmugm "

What do you see as the area(s) most needing improvement in the Vallecito Union School

%,t?rcl)c)g/hwn _al /{p/%o/\ Wfiors 1o Q(;/‘ ("]\/tol

Lhe Rl e fupenlS/ B4 e 3G
]4\‘\/ 1\6’(‘ LN -[t,my\[&l‘n’\ijr Jo / ")H‘V‘,IHLmGJ ma‘li’m a |

136



.

A

C4.

2L3- 026

/

RN 6 Li>

75

RECEIVED
FER O 7 w2

CANDIDATE INFORMATION SHEET |BY:. . .
Vallecito Union School District

Please fill out and return this Candidate Information Sheet (2 pages), along with a brief letter of
introduction by February 7, 2022 to Cheryl Boyd, or leave at the Superintendent’s office.

Date:

7
PunaonN  Crac

2.7, 7.1

(Last Name) (First Name) (Initial)

Business Address:

o

sy FF Mo,
Occupation and Employer: /\,ﬁ._:]_ | /R

No. of Years Residing in District: & "5,.; N

Do you have children in the District’s schools? Yes No &

If yes, what schools?

K.

Do you have prior experience serving on a governing board, specifically a school district
board? Please list such prior experience.

MARIN FAIMARS Ao M1 eoes L5 Sevfoo —

Have you worked on any school committees or participated in any school activities
recently? Please ;i\szthem.

Describe any other community or business activities in which you have participated.
Describe your role, and whether your work was volunteer or employment related.
LN Cppirig § 3oz
CALANEADY  MENT o AINC  FodnNt=>AT1oN

Why do you want to be a member of the Vallecito Union School District Governing Board
(“Board”)?

(i NE& /bAO/’Q 70 //’L{/‘Z&ﬂ C?f‘)/\'[/\'\lf/v:’/”y‘

-

137



Candidate Information Sheet — Board Vacancy
Page Two

5.

10.

What do you see as the basic purpose of the public schools?

it ) o L CA7o

What is the role of the Board in the fulfillment of that purpose?

o ' SNT Y . L.

riz A E AL AL LS S
7 YN

How does the Board’s role differ ﬁ'om that of the Supenntendent? A3 U PCAT T
AN L2 L2 JAE L V[ AP RO L 7S5
A = AL ACEH N 7 = AAD A/ o _‘g 7=

What should be the relationship between the Board members and the administration in the
handling of school concerns?

[LBotto MWNEMBEARS INTERKACE w Abmn STAATION

ON ] 35UES THAT MA*I AAISE 1Z784mnN & THE
Setop .

What do you see as the strengths of the Vallecito Union School District?
NZES 7T W/ THE Seloot- i=rsi\eT

What do you see as the area(s) most needing improvement in the Vallecito Union School

District? , "
NEs T w _THe ScHeots m5TA 1T
[A

138



CANDIDATE INFORMATION SHEET
Vallecito Union School District

Please fill out and return this Candidate Information Sheet (2 pages), along with a brief letter of
introduction by February 7, 2022 to Cheryl Boyd, or leave at the Superintendent s office.

Date: 2- 7'» ZZ

Hall Michael M,

(Last Name) (First Name) (Imtlal)

Business Address:

" Phone:

/1///3r

Occupation and Employer: Se ‘-P
No. of Years Residing in District: 5

Do you have children in the District’s schools? Yes N No

If yes, what schools? _/Mich 8 [sovi

1.

Do you have prior experience serving on a governing board, specifically a school district
board? Please list such prior experience. , .

T dm _eon_ the Michelsen Site Couwn ‘

T %5aY on dwhe intevie "cw\e\ Lo The new
Miewelgon principdl.

Have you worked on any school committees or participated in any school activities
rech}El‘yz Please list them.

t+ 1P _chapelone

ChlcKen 1y A paceel cook
vacioys Ficld +rips <hiperone

Describe any other community or business activities in which you have participated.
Describe your role, and whether your work was volunteer or employment related.

Volun teerp Murphy s strees Clean up.

Why do you want to be a member of the Vallecito Union School District Governing Board
(“Board™)?

T was as Kedto \oW\ ‘ov a 47@6\0’166
Lo T a0V A\,

139



Candidate Information Sheet — Board Vacancy
Page Two

5.

10.

What do you see as the basic purpose of the public schools?

Théy, \ovm Wwirh a free press are the
LounAdation= of A funtionng demopatic
Soclety, Thas dhey Ace AY¥s Red with
creating ‘a Jiterate adlce formed cltizenry dndl
MsTIN "8 lifelond tove of [eamivi

What is the role of the Board in the fulfillment of that purpose‘7

The \ooa(‘c(s {ob s Fo make sure +L.a+
+he. ST a€L And ddminisiration dre S‘qppl/ec(
1t e résources ne

'C; [e) o) ] o

How does the Board’s role differ from that of the Superintendent?

The \na?bn(( Sum:l!« and Su\portr tire qucrm+cmleﬂ+
W oy S

To "v\’\em \aes*r' c—\:’—gez,

What should be the relationship between the Board members and the administration in the
handling of school concerns?

T+ S‘homu be a3 non-adversaial

Par'\‘ne(‘sm@ Loaused on Droutaimc. a Safe
Aué\\ﬁ\: educationn o Ae SHeelents = in thar care,

What do you see as the strengths of the Vallecito Union School District?

T+ Qppears to be \ wdl cic T
wWibW 3w Jetive paehts clup ancﬂa\/aru
volwed aow\Mv\\Al\‘yh

What do you see as the area(s) most needing improvement in the Vallecito Union School
District?

T would e Yo see an expanded presehon|
systewn, FEducation v d $3fe W(\(.owm/\o\

BN ronveni— cdw nok  stapt ks QGV‘\)/.

140



RECEIVED
FEB 07 2i22

.
B s S 900 ttvenninntanngnsn

CANDIDATE INFORMATION SHEET

Vallecito Union School District

Please fill out and return this Candidate Information Sheet (2 pages), along with a brief letter of
introduction by February 7, 2022 to Cheryl Boyd, or leave at the Superintendent’s affice.

Date: 2/5/2022

Moore, Chris 1.

(Lﬂst Name) (FirstName) (Initial). CaSlovl e o S T spaegeel el sdvio

Occupation and Employer: Home Repair Services/ Sole Propietorship

No. of Years Residing in District: __ o o

Do you have children in the District’s schools? Yes_ X No
If yes, what schools? __Michelson Elementary

141



2/5/2022

To the Board.

My name is Chris Moore and | have submitted an application to be assigned a position on the
V.U.S.D. Board.This would be my first position on a School Board and | am excited about the
opportunity.

I first visited Calaveras County in 1989 with a friend's parents who were avid skiers and
enjoyed the mountain lifestyle. | would spend every other weekend in the area during the winter
skiing and longer stays during the summers. The time in this area helped shape my decision to
start a career in the outdoor industry and when | moved back from Salida, CO | knew this is
where | wanted to spend my adult life.

In 1997 | had decided to uproot from my hometown of San Jose, CA and follow my path in the
world of outdoor recreation and instruction. The greatest opportunities in the industry led me to
Salida, CO where | worked as a commercial river guide during the summers and as a
snowboard instructor during the winters for five years. After accomplishing the Guide Trainer
status in Colorado and PSIA (Professional Ski Instructors of America) Certifications | opted to
make the move back to California. | found the perfect combination (geographically) to continue
my love of the outdoor industry by accepting a position with O.A.R.S. (whitewater rafting) and
Bear Valley Ski Area. | felt like | was home. In the time since, | have held the titles of CA
Regional Manager and Director of Snowsports Operations, respectively.

Currently | am residing in Avery, CA after spending over a decade in Murphys, CA and my roots
are set. My wife Ashley and | are currently raising two children in the area, an eight year old and
a three year old. My daughter was a recognized student at Michelson Elementary from
Kindergarten through Second Grade and my son is currently part of the IEP program that is
being provided at Michelson.

The Public Education System has always been an interest of mine; in the early days of Public
School Magnet programs | had decided to enter the Teaching Academy that was being provided
at one of our local high schools. The Magnet programs were developed (in part) to provide
opportunities for young adults to attend schools with different leaming environments than their
specified district; the Magnet Program that | participated in was actually provided at the high
school within my district. This program helped develop my love for teaching and provided great
experiences through some very formative years.

| am hoping to be able to provide input to the Board based on my “alternative” teaching
experiences and help create a community partnership with the Public Education System through
respectful and diplomatic communication.

Respectfully,
Chris Moore

142



lecito Union School District Boar ication tionnair:

1. Do you have prior experience serving on a governing board, specifically a school
district board? Please lise such prior experiences

Though | do not have prior experience serving on a governing board, | have over a decade of
experience working with think-tank groups and sub-committees in outdoor

industries (snowsports and multi-day adventures). Within these groups, it was a priority to
create effective lines of communication with the governing bodies (e.g. Forest Service,
SMUD, HHWP) to benefit the bodies themselves as well as the individuals who were utilizing
the resources under their direction; | have often been tasked as a central spokesperson.

2. Have you worked on any school committees or participated in any school activities
recently? Please list them.

The last school activity that | have participated in was working as a volunteer for Mrs.
McKracken's kindergarten class, which my daughter was a part of. Aiding such a renowned
teacher with science and art curriculum was very enjoyable, however, being a part of the

education of children at such an impressionable age and creating excitement for those subjects
was incredibly fuifilling.

3. Describe any other community or business activities in which you have participated,
Describe your role, and whether your work was volunteer or employment related.

While | feel that our surrounding community is one of the most important reasons | have chosen
to raise my family here, due to my prior employment (which included nights and weekends) |
have had very limited time to volunteer on a regular basis; one significant reason for my recent
career change is based on work-hour flexibility. Over the years, | have had the opportunity to be

a representative for OARS at Job Fairs and fund-raising events; as a volunteer and as an
employee.

4. Why do you want to be a member of the Vallecito Union School District Governing
Board (“Board”)?

On a personal level, | would appreciate being able to provide input to my two childrens'
educational futures. From a community standpoint, being able to be a part of the success of the
District residents educational future would be extremely fulfilling also. The fact that the Board is
responsible for Primary Education only, | see this as a great opportunity to provide parameters
and resources for the (in my opinion) most crucial stage of a person's lifetime love of learning.

143



5. What do you see as the basic purpose of the public schools?

There are many lessons learned throughout our years in Public Schools. While many people
may believe that the schools are in place to educate the youth based on specific (mandated)
curriculum through standardized testing, throughout a full school day there are a number of
other “soft" lessons and life skills that are extremely important to a child's future. Public Schools
should be able to provide safe and nurturing environments for the youth of today in order to
create the best chance for successful, well rounded, confident aduits that can make a difference
in our ever-changing world tomorrow.

6. What is the role of the Board in the fulfillment of that purpose?

The role of the Board is to work as a liaison between the many facets of the public education
arena. Working together as a group, being able to listen to and prioritize a commmunities’
values, while formulating forward looking plans to achieve short and long term goals, as well as
the dispersion of the necessary financial resources to achieve those goals is key. The Board's
main agenda should include all of the stated responsibilities with a mindset that the overall goal
is to be student centered, facilitator backed, with a high level of accountability across-the-board.

7. How does the Board’s role differ from that of the Superintendent?

A Superintendent should be the person responsible for the day-to-day operation of the District.
A Board's responsibility is to provide the Superintendent with agreed upon policies and goals
that rely on the Superintendent to instill and manage. A Superintendent is also expected to work
in a leadership and supportive role for the active staff within the District, the Board is expected
to be a channel between all interested parties (parents, student, staff).

8. What should be the relationship between the Board members and administration in the
handling of school concerns?

The relationship should be one of respect and understanding with a great degree of trust
involved. A key to building this relationship starts with a shared idea of the short and long term
goals; common ground. Communication between the Board and the Administration must be
continual with both parties having the ability to be receptive and a willingness to compromise
when necessary.

9. What do you see as the strengths of the Vallecito Union School District?

First strength that comes to mind is the devotion of the faculty. Many of the educators and
support staff of the District have spent a good portion of their lives in Calaveras County and the
V.U.S.D. area.lt shows through their willingness to adapt to challenges specific to our area (e.q.
power outages/ snow days). Second, is the surrounding area itself... with lakes, rivers, and

mountains within close proximity there is even more opportunity to create a more well-rounded
student body.

144



10. What do you see as the area(s) most needing improvement in the Vallecito Union
School District?

I understand that there may be deficits and needs for improvement within the District, however, |
would prefer not to pass any sort of judgement until | have a greater understanding of the
causes behind those challenges. | prefer to see my possible position on the Board with open
eyes and ears and acquire a greater understanding of the areas that need the most
improvement.

145



LN

TravnsJ Owens L

B AR s RECEIVED

o A "34‘},(.4 IN&/\ S .v'.* i " —

o ,;«—_w A FEB 0 7 102
DR ) G

February 7, 2022

Vallecito Union School District

Dear Directors,

| have submitted my request to be appointed as a member of your board. My
wife and three children are Murphys residents. My children have attended
both Michelson Elementary and Avery Middle School. My wife is a school
counselor at Mark Twain Elementary, and my extended family contains
teachers and long-time Calaveras County residents.

My attached Candidate Information Sheet provides details on why | am
running for this position.

From 1997 to 2018, | served in the United States Navy as a lawyer (“JAG"). |
recently opened a law office in Murphys on Highway 4. Now in private
practice as a lawyer, | hope to continue my public service through this school
board appointment.

Thank you for taking the time to consider my Candidate Information Sheet.

Sincerely,

J.'Owens, J.D,MA, LLM

Lieutenant Commander, U.S. Navy, Judge Advocate
Generals’ Corps (Ret.)

146



CANDIDATE INFORMATION SHEET
Vallecito Union School District

Please fill out and return this Candidate Information Sheet (2 pages), along with a brief letter of
introduction by February 7, 2022 to Cheryl Boyd, or leave at the Superintendent’s office.

Date; February 7, 2022

Owens, Travis J. . . YR
(LastName) (Fil'StNamé) (Initial) &8 T L L PO .o -:?"'.': "." gt -

Occupation and Employer: Sel-Employed Attomey practiing In Calaveras County

No. of Years Residing in District: 3 1/2

Do you have children in the District’s schools? Yes _1 No
If yes, what schools? Avery Middle School (son); daughter attanded AMS, now &t BHHS.

1. Do you have prior experience serving on a governing board, specifically a school district
board? Please list such prior experience.
No, not on a school district board.

2. Have you worked on any school committees or participated in any school activities
recently? Please list them.
Yes. | was a subslitute teacher from 2019 through 2021 at Avery, Mark Twaln, Michelson, and Bret Harte. | have

served as an assistant basketball coach at Michelson and Avery. During my twenly years in the Navy, | was from
2006-2008 the attornay for the Naval Postgraduate Schoo! in Monterey, California, .

3. Describe any other community or business activities in which you have participated.
Describe your role, and whether your work was volunteer or employment related.
| served on the Murphys Sanitary District Board of Directors from 2018-2021. | currently serve on the

Calaveras Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFGO). In January of this year, | opened my law
office (Murphys Law) on Hwy 4 In Murphys.

4. Why do you want to be a member of the Vallecito Union School District Governing Board
(“Board™)?
1 spent 20 years in public service as a Navy Officer. Since my retirement from the Navy In 2018, | have
continually sought to continue serving the public as | consider It a duty of American citizenship. My children
have benefited greatly from Michelson and Avery Middle, and | want other kids to be abtle to do the same.

-2-

147



Candidate Information Sheet — Board Vacancy
Page Two '

3.

10.

What do you see as the basic purpose of the public schools?
The purpose of the public schools is to educate children in a core set of subjects and offer them exposure

to other areas of life through electives, fleld trips, and open dialogue with teachers and other students.
The public schools also serve the purpose of providing local residents local employment opportunities to
toach and exerclse thelr administrative skills in support of thelr local community.

What is the role of the Board in the fulfillment of that purpose?

A Board of Dlrectors “dlracts” the overarching policles (“the mission®) that gulde the Superintendent as he administers
the Board's policles. The Board of directors focus Is on big plcture ltems such as currleulum and
budgets. Itis not a manager of the staff or employees of the school, but it must always be seeking Input from the
Superintendent, staff, teachers, members of the public, businesses, etc. as it seeks to develop policy.

How does the Board’s role differ from that of the Superintendent?
The Supsrintendent's job Is to administer the policles/carry out the mission set forth by the Board.

He works with District staff to ensure the Princlpals have the resources to carry out thelr misston. A Superintendent
works with staff, teachers, students, and parents to develop policles for Board approval.

What should be the relationship between the Board members and the administration in the
handling of school concerns?

The Board should always be opsn to recelving Input from the Superintendent, staff, and administrators, but
as Diractors of policy, the Board should avold Involvement In day-to-day management of schaols. Invalvement

beyond the level of policy making undermines the Superintendent's and Princlpal's authority over thelr staffs.

What do you see as the strengths of the Vallecito Union Scheol District?
The VUSD Is a mode! District. | have had my children In great Elementary and Middle School districts In 3 different

states and In the Department of Defense schools. VUSD cemblnes afl the positive aspects of the other districts

) have seen: dedlcated teachers, helpful staff, engaged parents, beauilfully-kept facilities, and strong leadership.

What do you see as the area(s) most needing improvement in the Vallecito Union School
District? '

1do not presume to know all the efiorts mado by the Board on vasicus lssuos 50 | won\ try to say what neods improvoment. | will say that Covid has

mkmahonwtoﬂmlmﬂwnndwwtm,nndlormqtholﬂnguldmlbngumlmfwudh, g tho disli Jon of

' L P

Proventing that disintegration and strengthening positive retationships between familios, teachers, and administratora Is critical to VUSD's succoas.

148



CANDIDATE INFORMATION SHEET
Vallecito Union School District

Please fill out and return this Candidate Information Sheet (2 pages), along with a brief letter of
introduction by February 7, 2022 to Cheryl Boyd, or leave at the Superintendent's office.

Date: 1/05/2023

Pease, Jeffrey B. RN
(Last Name) (Fu'st Name)‘(lnmal) e e

i

Occupation and Employer: Correctional Sergeant at California Department of Corrections and Rehabilitations
No. of Years Residing in District: 34

Do you have children in the District’s schools? Yes _ X No
If yes, what schools? Albert Michelson Elementary

1. Do you have prior experience serving on a governing board, specifically a school district
board? Please list such prior expen'ence.

Department of Corrections as a subject matter expert | have also sat on and

participated in Classification Committee’s for inmates as a Staff assistant

2, Have you worked on any school committees or participated in any school activities
recently? Please list them.

| have attended every school function that Michelson has offered.
(My son made sure we didn't miss a single one)

3. Describe any other community or business activities in which you have participated.
Describe your role, and whether your work was volunteer or employment related.

| was an active member of the Native Sons for 4 years and | am currently
a member of the Angels Gun Club since 2002.

4, Why do you want to be a member of the Vallecito Union School District Governing Board
(“Board™)?
Onco my son staited Kindergarton this year | wanted to be involved. | started {ing the board tings to get an ldoa of the current and future

situation at Vallecito Unlon School District. | attondod VUSD from Kindorgarten to 8lh grade. My mothor attondod VUSD for the samo amount of time

and my Grandfather altended school al tha old Murg'hy 's School housoe, After allending somo meetings tharo wero things { Iiked (agroed) with and somo things 1 did
not. | botlovo If | foel there s somathing | think that should or could bo done difforent | owe it to myself to be involved and help change It.

-2

149



Candidate Information Sheet — Board Vacancy
Page Two

S.

10.

What do you see as the basic purpose of the public schools?
Public school prepares students for college and the workforce, including preparin% them for
Jjobs that may not even exist yet due to rapidly changing technology. And to help chifdren tulfill

their diverse potentials.

What is the role of the Board in the fulfillment of that purpose?

By establishing direction and priorities for the school. They monitor and review school
performance and report it to the stalf, parents and students. They also develop, maintain

and review curriculum for the school

How does the Board’s role differ from that of the Superintendent?

The Board establishes the direction and priorities of the school. The Superintendent makes
sure the board 1S Informed about district operafions and activities, and about the disfrict’s needs.

e Superintendent manages the day-to- i ity wi policies.

What should be the relationship between the Board members and the administration in the
handling of school concerns?

A mutual trust that the administration will implement and enforce policies that the board puts
in place and also to report back any problems or ideas to make VUSD better for the students and staff

What do you see as the strengths of the Vallecito Union School District?

| see that VUSD is a part of a very close community. | have single handedly seen this community
come togetherto help others M nesd MUmerous tmes. Tfeeritissuch a blessing thatwe are

a smaller district so more attention can be placed on each individual student. They say it takes a village to
raise a child and T feel fortunate to be a part of this “village.”

What do you see as the area(s) most needing improvement in the Vallecito Union School
District?

In these trying times | see a divide in our community. | hope to be a part of the board and
‘hetp bring Us back together- T thinkattimes peopie feel unheard with their concerns.

| want the help put forth the reputation that VUSD board is transparent and open to all of the
members in the community. | truly feel that has been the Boards vision | want to help keep that progression.

150



B2

R PR IR

o s -Shannon:-Stmpson’*

02/04/2022

Vallecito Union School District
Re: School Board Vacancy

Dear VUSD Board,

I am writing to formally introduce myself, and express interest in the vacant position on the
governing board of the Vallecito Union School District. My family is fairly new to Calaveras
County, we relocated here in December of 2018. My wife and I have four children, two of whom
are current Michelson Elementary students. I am not currently employed; 1 am a full-time
homemaker and parent. My professional background is in Clinical Wound Care.

I strongly believe that every child deserves an exceptional education. I am grateful for my own
public education, and for the opportunities for learning, development, and personal growth I have
been afforded. I know that a participative community is crucial to the creation of a safe, healthy,

and effective learning environment. We need each other to succeed. With that in mind, I would
like to offer my service to the Board.

I have four children, ages 7, 6, 5, and 2. Subsequently, most of my time is spent in negotiation,
crisis management, and conflict resolution. My propensity for mediation is one of my strengths. 1
am able to get along easily with people, even those with whom I disagree. I believe that the
heightened emotions and over-politicization at recent meetings have been an impediment to the
board’s success. I believe in personal freedoms, individual liberty, and the importance of
kindness. I am hopeful that through effective communication, our community will be able to
work together for the benefit of everyone.

Sincerely,

e

hannorSimpdon

151



CANDIDATE INFORMATION SHEET
Vallecito Union School District

Please fill out and return this Candidate Information Sheet (2 pages), along with a brief letter of
introduction by February 7, 2022 to Cheryl Boyd, or leave at the Superintendent’s office.

.. Date; OZ/ 04 / w22,
Sumpsan, Shanngg, E

(Last Ndme) {First Name){Initial)

Business Address: n/& LT ) Phone: )

i, b "’:M' ¢ - f .‘.:.
Home Address'¥jy 45 Ay RPN

P R R P )

Yt

'y
¢

Occupation and Employer: Hdmgma /Ce;j, 2] /@
No. of Years Residing in District: 2

Do you have children in the District’s schools? Yes X No

If yes, what schools? {Jg Son g emeﬂﬁr;/

1. Do you have prior experience serving on a governing board, specifically a school district
board? Please list such prior experience.

2, Have you worked on any school committees or participated in any school activities
recently? Please list them.

Gonpinved o

Describe any other community or business activities in which you have participated.
Describe your role, and whether your work was volunteer or employment related.
q o .

4. Why do you vzant ?()Jbe a membeér of the amcito Union School District Governing Board

f“Board”)?
W 0 [‘ n 4 Covnmunidy (dnd Societyl 4 i~ €0V

ATCE
n'.‘ H sk (4] 'm Ad

LY AY/ \YVO B UL Y] ¥ 4.1-1

A...ﬂl NAOIN, ang BN/ aivy A4Ir0 249

‘l"ed o ald the goveming .0 u--ﬂ“ b Ot
owrs:ﬂh’r of WP’ eluc?ﬂm:l enviroment, P

152



(ZA(CM"'&:E have  been i CLMge of 2012 Chken 1 a
@md, the gﬁ/mi Ar Sondpuiser, the \dnter Craft Lair;
dnd Teacher Arrmaﬂm Weeks, T have worked o +he Kﬂj/y
Kieme  Sundrassers, Spit War Sules, the Hanest Testina) and
QQCIC’W- School /\/ W, L wae qlso assisted vr{\e /4(/6?)/
N{JJ S chul Pmnb Clob in Sodmisers  as vieeded.

163



Candidate Information Sheet — Board Vacancy

Page Two

5. What do you sge as the basic purpose of the public schog)s?
.’ ¢_Scnodls serve_as_a_soGetal safety neh They ensue
1. 1 €44 ’, NN €30 €CoNO, Q11 ’ L (Y,

10.

t.Lll/l . 198V, 4 142 W0 & ‘«',.4 1)

M‘MMQ‘ e rly
0

What 15 the role of t{lag Board in the fulfillment of that purpose?

1] a.utul' ]
IALAI-.’ wad VL XS

Hw doe tl;%oggs role d%fer from tnat of tl{le%upaezrv?owmt;dem?
(e KA - Ohoen q L 'Jl i 4 > oary
n.:.l ll"...l ARYNTENo O mm
and_supervise vﬂmrmm a

Ccammﬂcé on dack)
What should be the relationship between the Board members and the administration in the
handling of school concerns?

(he schodl éogn} J(lmms J&ﬂd— Fm- which

A 59174 m’ 2o

T ryorim : LY ‘ rlae, : (A I ﬂ‘ ALigw,

Ceantined on bw@

w do you see as the strengths of the Vallecito Union School Dlstnct‘7
VUSV {5 ’GI" 9 Ommified. enqaged YL HL [he Payents

ov w ¥. I Abot4 u ilorfn, 4na el ham
" in: . ayt W9 " Ang ..
am wmmv ity tm a{mch b -vhe. ke s andlism,

What do you see as the atea(s

District?

.'l- 0¢n~ Sa‘hd 33 cmmf{y VKJCFS{AM_.IM_ML‘___

) most needing improvement in the Vallecito Union School

assf&!qm (}my sched fovrs ,- }ql or n{mffn/;
2 We an asmall, ol Bihick which engonders o, famikar
(and  sametiines as val) quoj,‘w( a+ board meetings T
Lelieve communif eJmHon ar\ boarb praoafls, ves M‘z&/f’es

b limbtapsons would be prv dent, (Arcarer effiacy
o:llwﬂry} wavlf q”ow -For l"vm%?d él%ﬂﬂ-%ff Sudis;

-3-

154



'
7. CW')Q%WM/ erafvr, f‘\e Sulﬂermfean 4450 o«FPerf

The
‘ ?lﬂ» eriise an hs(pmma\afq#m; info (769} ra o535,
é::‘\zd 'I;xﬁlﬁm‘édy r&sf? onsible for 65”'4‘(5/1117 Pol%}g} which the

Sycr:mfn(!m Wil enagh

@, (cntd) effective delogation and ndvida| oumershp of tasks
" elris (While wintaininy persmql W}ﬂﬁi&gy) are
tJaL[ for Suceess,

165



February 4, 2022

Vallecito Union School District e

(B e [ 5y et
PO. Box 329 S BCEIVED
Avery, CA 95224

Dear Vallecito Union School District,

I’m writing to you regarding the Vallecito Union School District Board vacancy I recently
discovered through your website. As the prior Deputy City Clerk for the City of Sonora I
have experience working for a governing board. Through my experience with the City of
Sonora I have attended City Council meetings where 1 have assisted in assuring public
governance procedures as well as assisted in the development and implementation of the
Division’s goals, objective, polices procedures and work standards. I believe my
professional background working for the City of Sonora is perfect for the vacant board
position.

Before working for the City of Sonora I've been raising my children while also working
remotely from time to time in the mortgage lending business. I worked as both a
Secretary to the Associate Warden and as a Case Records Technician for Sierra
Conservation Center for over 4 and half years. These roles required me to be up to date
on not only Departmental Policy but also California statutory requirements, as well as

requiring the upmost confidentiality. Between these two positions, I’'ve gained extensive
knowledge about working for a public agency.

P’m confident that I have the work cthic, attention to detail, and problem solving skills
necessary to [ulfill the role of Vallecito Union School Board Member with the Vallecito
Union School District. I look forward to discussing the details of the vacancy more with
you. you can rcach me by phone at'(209) 743-8472, or via email at
Jodisledge44@hotmail.com.

Sincerely,

bt B Seage

Jodi G. Sledge

156



Occupation and Employer: Homemaker
No. of years residing in District: 34 Years

Do you have children in the District’s schools? Yes/ Hazel Fischer Elementary

Do you have prior experience serving on a governing board, specifically a school district
board? Please list such prior experience.

As | do not have experience serving on a governing board, as the prior Deputy City Clerk for
the City of Sonora | attended Gity Council meetings where | assisted in assuring public
governance procedures. | assisted in the development and implementation of the Division’s
goals, objectives, polices procedures and work standards. Researched public records and
provided information to the public and staff members concerning City Council actions, laws,
ordinance, codes, procedures and projects. Assisted with the compilation of agenda items for
City Council meetings; direct preparation and distribution of agenda packets; summarize and
publish agenda information. Assisted in the development and preparation of the annual budget.
As the Deputy City Clerk | attended City Council meetings, took minutes, managed zoom and

reported out on City Clerk items. Provided support to Commission and Subcommittee, if
assigned. :

Have you worked on any school committees or participated in any school activities
recently? Please list them.

No, due to Covid-19 and this being my youngest child’s second year in school | was not able
to participate in any school activities. Prior to Covid-19 my oldest daughter had just started
school and | was home with my son. | am hopeful that | will be able to participate in future
school activities and committees now that both my children are attending Hazel Fischer

Elementary. | have been actively participating in school board meetings for the last year and a
half.

Describe any other community or business activities in which you have participated.
Describe your role, and whether your work was volunteer or employment related.

As a mother of two children | have participated in many local activities from soccer, dance,
gymnastics and playdates. All of which | have first and foremost been my children’s
cheerleader as well as helped the coaches out whenever they needed. | have also set up trash
clean up days around our local parks with my children and others. While working as the Deputy

City Clerk | assisted in employee recognition day, where | helped with food preparation, set up
and take down and employee certificates.

157



Why do you want to be a member of the Vallecito Union School District Governing Board
(“Board”)?

As a mother of two school age children in this district, | feel it is very important to be involved in
decisions made for our children’s education and well being. | understand the challenges that
the board faces in these times of uncertainty and | believe with my experience | would be an
asset to the board, as well as having the compassion and perspective of a mother.

What do you see as the basic purpose of the public school?

| believe the purpose of public school is to provide opportunities for kids to flourish. This
means that students develop to become healthy, confident and graduate prepared to reach
their highest potential. To allow our children to grow, learn and make mistakes. Communication
and social skills are imperative for their future.

What is the role of the Board in the fulfillment of that purpose?

The boards role to fulfill that purpose is to set the policy that best supports our superintendent
and staff and to ensure all students are flourishing and learning. To make sure our teachers and
staff have all the tools they need to teach and support our children, and that our
superintendent is not only providing support to our teachers and staff but the students. | feel it
is important that board members visit the schools, sit in on classes, and speak to teachers and

staff. Being a present board member allows you to know where your weaknesses are and your
strengths.

How does the Board's role differ from that of the Superintendent?

The board’s role is to represent the concerns of the citizens and parents to school
administrators and represent the needs of the students and school district to the citizens and
parents of the community. As an elected board it is their role to set the policy and the role of
the superintendent to implement the policy. The superintendent’s role is on a day-to-day basis

as the chief executive who is responsible for implementing the policies and achieving the
goals.

What should be the relationship between the Board members and the administration in
the handiing of school concerns?

| feel the relationship should be an open communication. Any concerns addressed by
constituents need to be forwarded to and discussed with the superintendent. Although the
board is not allowed to have private meetings as a collective body they can individually
communicate with the administration regarding concerns. If the school concerns are beyond
the superintendents ability to remedy solely, then the superintendent should always seek

council from the school board and agendize any concerns that need to be discussed as a
collective body publicly.

What do you see as the strengths of the Valiecito Union School District?

Vallecito Union School Districts strengths are, through the pandemic thus far our district has
fought hard to keep our schools open for in-person learning. With ever changing guidelines to
new variant outbreaks we have continued to keep our doors open and our children learning the
safest way possible for students and teachers. These are unprecedented times and | feel our
school district has done their best to navigate through it all.

158



What do you see as the area(s) most needing improvement in the Vallecito Union School
District?

Transparency and communication. Although | am aware how guidelines change sometimes on
a daily basis | feel having better communication with parents and the community would greatly
benefit the relationship between the district and the community. It opens doors to the
community to feel as their concerns are being heard. In these times of uncertainty we need to
pull together as a community. Division and silence will aiways put a strain on districts
relationship with the community and parents. We may not always see eye to eye but for a
district to be as transparent and clear as possible will always make for better understanding.

159



